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Notice of AGM, Proxy Form and Annual Report

In accordance with Listing Rule 15.2, attached is a copy of the 2009 Notice of Annual General
Meeting, Proxy Form and Annual Report which will be despatched to shareholders today.

Share consolidation:
Iltems 4 and 5 in the 2009 Notice of Annual General Meeting relate to a proposal to effect a
consolidation of shares in the Company.

If approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, the Company proposes to
implement the share consolidation in accordance with the timetable set out below:

Event Date

Annual General Meeting Date - shareholders approve Monday 16 November 2009
consolidation

Last day of pre-consolidation trading Monday 16 November 2009

First day of post-consolidation trading - deferred Tuesday 17 November 2009
settlement basis

Last day for registration of pre-consolidation share Monday 23 November 2009
transfers
First day of post-consolidation trading - ordinary Tuesday 1 December 2009

settlement (T+3) basis

Yours faithfully

Far and on behalf of Engin Limited

John Kinninmont
Company Secretary

Attach.
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2009 NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

ENGIN LIMITED ABN 46 053 582 930

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General
Meeting of Engin Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at:

Room 7, 38 — 42 Pirrama Road,

Pyrmont, NSW 2009

on Monday, 16 November 2009

at 11.00 am (Sydney time).




AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

Statements and Reports

Hem 1

Ta receive and consider the Statements of Financial Performance ané
Financial Position of the Company and consolidated financial statements
of the Company and the entities it controlled for the financial year ended
30 June 2009, together with the statements and reports of Directors and
Auditors attached to the financial statements.

Remuneration Report

item 2

To adopt the Remuneration Report of the Company for the financial year ended
30 June 2009. Note — tie vote on this resoiution is advisory only and does not
bind the Directors of the Company.

Re-Election of Director

Hem 3

To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary resolution:
That Ryan Stokes, a Director retiring in accerdance with Rule 6.1 of the
Company's constitution, being eligible, is re-¢lected as a Director of
Engin Limited.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Share consolidation

ftam 4
To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass the following special resolution:

That the constitution of the Company be amended by inserting the following
after rule 2.6, as rule 2.7:

2.7 Fractional entitlements
The directors may do anything required fo give effect to any resofution affering
the company’s share capital, including, where a mamber becomes entitled to
a fraction of a share on a consslidation:
(a) making cash payments;
(b) determining that fractions may be disregarded in order to adjust the
rights of all parties;
{c} appointing a trustes to deal with any fractions on behalf of
members; and
{dy  rounding up each fractional entitlement to the nearest whole share
by capitalising any amount avaifable for capitalisation under rule 9.7
ayen though:
(i} members participate other than in the same proporlions as their
entitlement to dividends; and

(i} not all members participate.

In exercising their powers under paragraph (c), the directors shall procure

as soon as Is reasonably practicable that the aggregate of all the fractional
entitlernents fo shares resulting from the consolidation are sold on the
Exchange and that the appoinied irustee distributes the net proceeds of

the sale to those members entitfed o a fraction of a share on cansolidation
(“Entitled Members”} in proportion to their fractional entitlements. for this
purpose, each Entitled Member irrevacably appoints the company severally as
ils attorney to complete and execuie such instruments on the member’s befralf
as the aftorney thinks necessary or desirable to give effect to the sale. The
company shall bear all cost of a saie made pursuant to this rufe.

ftemb

To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary resolution:
That, subject fo the passing of the resolution in [tem 4, and pursuant to
section 254H of the Corporations Act and for all ather purposes, the Company
approves the consolidation of every fifty {50) ordinary shares on issue on the
Consolidation Record Date into ang erdinary share and whera the number

of shares held by a member of the Company as a result of the consalidation
effacted by this resolution includas any fractian of a share, those fractions
are {0 be cancelled and extinguished and the conselidation will otherwise be
as described in the Explanafory Memorandum accompanying the Botice of
Meeting convening this meeting,

By order of the Board

Jobn Kinninmont
Company Secretary
28 September 2009

Notes:

L. A member Is entitled to appeint a proxy. A memher who is entitled {e cast two o7
more votes is entitled to appoint two proxies. If two proxies are appointed by a
member, that member may speciy the properticn or number of votes each proxy is
appointed to exercise. if 2 member appoints two proxies and the appointment dees
not specify the prepertion or number of the member's votes each proxy may exercise,
each proxy may exercise half the votes.

2. Forthe purpose of determining a person’s entitlement fo vote at the meeting,
a person wilt be recognised as a mamber and the holder of shares if that
person is registered as a helder of those shares at 7.00 pm {Sydney tima) on
Saturday, 14 November 2009,

3. A proxy need nct be a member of the Company.

4. A proxy form and the power of atterney or authority (if any) under which it is
signed or a capy of the power of attorney or authority certified as a true copy by
statutosy declaration, must be duly completed and returned fo the Secretary,
Engin Limited, either at the Company Secretariat, Level 2, 38 — 42 Pirrama
Road, Pyrmont NSW 2005 fax number: 02 8777 7182 or at Registries Limited,
Level 7, 207 Kent Street, Sydney NSW 2000 fax number: 02 9230 9655 or completed
online at www.registries.com.au/votefenginagm2009 by no later than 11,00 am
{Sydney time} on Saturday, 14 November 2009.




EXPLANATORY NOTES

ITEM 1

Statements and Reports
As required by section 317 of the Garporations Act 2001 (Cth}

("Corporations Aet”} the financial report, Directors’ report and auditors’ repert

of Engin Limited (the “Company”} for the most recent financial year will
be laid befare the mesting. There is no requirement for 2 formal resolution
on this item, and accordingly, this item is excluded from the proxy form.
Shareholders will be given a reasonable opportunity at the meeting to ask
questions and make comments on these reperts.

ITEM 2

Remuneration Report

As required by section 300A of the Corporations Act, the Directors’ repart
includes a section entitied the “Remuneration Report”.

A reasonable opportunity will be pravided for discussion of the Remuneration
Report at the meeting. In addition, the Corporations Act naw requires listed
companies to put the Remuneration Report for each financial year fo a
resolution of membsrs at their annual general meeting.

Under the Corporatians Act, the voie is advisory only and does not bind the
Directors or the Company, and does not affect the empioyment arrangements
in place for employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

tn summary, the Remuneration Repori:

= expiains the Board's policy for determining the nature and amount
of remuneration of Directors, secretaries and senior managers of
the Company;

+ pxplains the relationship bekween the Board's remuneration policy and the
Company's performance;

= detaiis and explains any performance cenditions applicable to the
remuneration of Directors, secretaries and senior managers of the
Company; ané

s sets out remuneration details for each Director and the 5 most highly
remunerated senior executives of the Company and the Group (including
the value of any options granted to those persons).

The Board uranimously recommends that shareholders vote in favour of
adapting the Remuneration Report.

ITEM 3

Re-Election of Directar

Rulz 6.1 of the constitution of the Company requires that at each annual
general meeting, ane-third of the Directors in office, (rounded down, if
necessary, to the nearest whole number), and any other Director not ir such
ane-third who has held office for 3 years or more, or for 3 or more annual
general meelings since he or she was |ast elected fo office, must retire from
office. A retiring Director is eligible for re-clection.

Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition {o the
existing Directors, holds office until the next Anntal General Meeting of the
Company and is then eligible for re-election but is not taken into account in
determining the Directors who are fo retire by rotation af that meeting.

Being eligible, Mr Stokes offers himself for re-election to the Board af the
meeting. Mr Stokes is currently a Director of Seven Network Limited, having
been appainted in December 2005.

Mr Stokes holds a Bachelor of Commerce {Curtin University) and is Presicent
of Seven Network Asia. He is a Director of Seven Media Group Pty. Limited and
Yahoo!7 and an Alternate Direstor of West Ausiralian Newspapars Holdings
Limited. He is a Director of Consolidated Media Holdings Limited.

He is an Executive and Birector of Australian Capiial Equity Ply. Limited and
associated companies including WesTras Ply Limited.

He is & member of the Neminatien and Remungration Commitiee.

The Board (other than Mr Stokes) unarimously recommends that shareholders
vote in favour of Mr Stokes” re-glection.

ITEMS 4 AND 5

Share consolidation resclution (Item 5)

The Board considers that the Company has a very high number of shares on
issue, resulting in a lower nominal share price. This, by ifs very nature, means
that a small change in the share price can lead to a substantial change in
the market capitalisation of the Company and its implied worth. For example,
a 1 cent change in share price moves the Company's market capitalisation by
mare than $6 million.

The Board ¢onsiders that a share consolidation will beiter align the
Company’'s nominal share price with an avarage of the share prices of
its peers, and is a more appropriate benchmark for a company of Engin's
size. Accordingly, it is intended that the number of ordinary shares on
issue be reduced by consolidating every fifty (50) shares inte one share
(the “Share Conselidation”).

The resolution in item 4 is to amend the constitution %o facilitate dealing
with fractions arising from the consolidation. The resolution in ltem 5 is to
authorise the Share Consolidation.

Impact of Share Consclidation

The Share Consolidation will reduce the number of shares an issue from
635,516,979 to appreximately 12,710,000. All of the Company's shares arg,
and will remain, fully paid,

The Share Consolidation will have na impact on the amount of paid up capital
in the Company and invaivas no retum of capital to shareholders.

Theoretically, following the Share Consclidation the share price of the shares
on ASX will be fifty times that of the pre-Share Corsolidation price. In
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practice, however, the share price is affected by a range of factors guiside
the contrel of the Company and so the post-Share Consolidation market price
canrol be forecast.

Effect on other securities

The Company has no other classes of shares en issue, nor any options,
convertible securities or other rights over unissced shares,

Of the 635,516,979 ordinary shares on issue, 39,000 are stbject to the
Gompany's Employee Share Plan and 3,628,500 are Employee Escrow Shares.
Under the Share Gonsslidation, these will be consolidated into approximately
780 shares and 72,570 shares, respectively.

Fractional entitlements to shares

Shareholders entitled to a fraction of & share will have the fractional
entitlement rounded down to the nearest whole number of shares.

Approval requirements

The Share Consclidaticn reguires approval by shareholders by erdinary
resotution. The Share Conselidaticn is conditional on the passing of the
resolution in [tem 4, which is to amend the constitution of the Company, to
enable the Company to deat with fractions arising ¢n consofidation. In order
for the resolution in ltem 4 1o be passed, a majority of three-quarters of voles
cast on the resclution must be in favour of the reselation.

Timing for implementation

The Gompany intends that if the resolutions in [tems 4 and 5 are approved
by shareholders, the Share Gonsclidation wili take effect on 17 November
2009. Fost Share Consolidation shares will trade on a deferred settlement
basis from this date, and from I December 2009, wili trade on an ordinary
settlement basis (T+3).

Rlteration to Constitution (ltem 4)

The Boart has proposed the resofution in ltem £ fo facilitate the
implementaticn of the proposed Share Consolidation {and any fuiure
consolidaticns and subdivisions of shares that the Company may propose).
While the Company dees not require constitutional authority to proceed

with the Skare Consolidation, the Company does require a constituticnal
amendment to erable it to deal with fractional share entitlements that may
occur as a result of the Share Consolidation.

How Fractional Entitfements arise under the Share Consolidation

As explained above, under the Share Consolidation, every fifty (50 shares will
be converted into one share. However, not all sharehelders will hold a number
of shares that is an integral muitiple of fifty. For example, if a shareholder
held 2,009,001 shares, this would convert into 40,006 and ene-fiftieth shares
post-Share Consolidation.

The effect of the proposed alteration fo the constitution

The prepesed alteration provides for several mechanisms for Directors to deal
with fractional entitlements that may occur as a result of & conselidation.
With regard fo the present Share Conselidation proposal, the board wishes

to disregard the fractional entitiements such that the amount held on
corsolidation will be rounded down o the nearest whale share. Paragraph (b)
of the proposed alteration will authorise this.

The thecretical maximum reduction in value of the shareholder's holding
arising from the rounding down would only be 49 times the market price

of & current share. However, the administrative convenieace and minimum
expense in adopting this method of dealing with fractions may well result in
the reduction in value of each member's holding being less than this amount,
as there will be fewer shares on issue than there would be if the fractions
were dealt with in another way.

One of the alternative avenues that the Directors could pursue under the
proposed article is provided for in paragraph (c), which woufd enable the
Directors o appoint 2 trustee who would sell the shares and remit the
proceeds o the shareholders entitled to the fractions in proportion to their
fractional entitlements. The Directors have decided not to pursue this
alternative on the basis of the costs of conducting the sale and distributing
the preceeds of the sale of the fractional entitlements to shareholders.
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LODGE YOUR VOTE - YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

FOR YOUR VOTE TO BE EFFECTIVE IT MUST BE RECORDED BEFORE 11.00AM SATURDAY 14th

NOVEMBER 2009

TO VOTE ONLINE

engin Limited
ABN 46 063 582 980

FOR ALL ENQUIRIES CALL:
(within Australia) 1300 737 760
(outside Australia) +61 2 9290 9600

FACSIMILE
+61 29290 9655

ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO;
Registries Limited
GPO Box 3993

Sydney NSW 2001
Australia

Your Address
This is your address as it appears on the
company’s share register. If this is incorrect,

please mark the box with an “X” and make the

correction on the farm. Securityholders
sponsored by a braker should advise your
broker of any changes. Please note, you

cannot change ownership of your securities

using this form.

<SRN/HIN>

TO VOTE BY COMPLETING THE PROXY FORM

STEP 1 Appointment of Proxy

Indicate here who you want to appoint as your Proxy

If you wish to appaint the Chairman of the Meeting as your proxy, mark the box. If
you wish to appoint someone other than the Chaiman of the Meeting as your proxy
please write the full name of thatindividual ar body corporate. If you leave this
section blank, or your named proxy does not attend the meeting, the Chairman of
the Meeting will be your proxy. A proxy need not be a security holder of the
company. Do not write the name of the issuer company or the registered
securityholder in the space.

Proxy which is a Body Corporate

Where a bady corporate is appointed as your proxy, the representative of that body
corporate attending the meeting must have provided an “Appointment of Corporate
Representative” prior to admission. An Appointment of Corporate Representative
form can be obtained from the company's securities registry.

Appointment of a Second Proxy

You are enfitled to appoint up to two proxies to attend the meeting and vote ona
poll. if you wish to appoint a second proxy, an additionat Proxy Form may be
obtained by telephoning the company's securities registry or you may copy this
form.

To appaint a second proxy you must:

(a) complete two Proxy Ferms. On each Proxy Form state the percentage
of your voting rights or the number of securities applicable to that form, If
the appointments do not specify the percentage or number of votes that
gach proxy may exercise, each proxy may exercise half your votes.
Fractions of votes will be disregarded; and

b) return both forms together in the same envelope.

STEP 2 Voting Directions to your Proxy

You can tell your Proxy how to vote

To direct your proxy how to vole, place a mark in one of the boxes opposite each
item of business. All your securities will be voted in accordance with such a
directien unfess you indicate only a portion of voting rights are to be voted on any
item by inserting the percentage or number of securities vou wish to vote in the
appropriate box or boxes. If you do not mark any of the boxes on a given item, your
proxy may vote as he er she chooses, If you mark more than one box on an item
your vote on that item will be invalid.

STEP 3 Sign the Form

The form must be signed
In the spaces provided you must sign this form as follows:

Individual: This form is to be signed by the securityholder.

Joint Holding: where the hokding is in mare than one name, all the securityholders must
sign.

Power of Attorney: to sign under a Power of Alorney, you must have already fodged it
with the registry. Alternatively, attach a certified phatacopy of the Power of Attorney to this
farm when you retum it.

Companies: this form must be signed by a Director jointly with either another Director or a
Company Secretary. Where the company has a Sole Director who is also the Sale
Company Secretary, this form must be signed by that person. Please indicate the office
held by signing in the appropriate place.

STEP 4 Lodgement of a Proxy

This Proxy Form (and any Power of Aftorney under which it is signed) must be received at
an address given below not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting
at11.00am on Monday, 16 Novemnber 2009, Any Proxy Form received after that time will
not be valid for the scheduled meefing.

Proxies may be lodged using the reply paid envelope or:

BY MAIL  Share Registry - Registries Limited, GPO Box 3993, Sydney NSW
2001 Australia
BY FAX +612 9290 9655

IN PERSON Share Registry — Registries Limited, Level 7, 207 Kent Street, Sydney
NSW 2000 Austratia

Vote online at:
www.registries.com.au/vote/enginagm2009
or turnover to complete the Form =



PROXY FORM

Annual General Meeting

@ engin

<Co Name>
<Address 1>
<Address 2>
<Address 3>
<Address 4>
<Address 5>

<BARCODE>

STEP 1 - Appointment of Proxy

IWe being a memberss of engin Limited and entitied to attend and vote heraby appoint

the Chairman of If you are not appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as Your proxy plegse write
the Meeting here the full name of the individual or body carporate (excluding the registered
{mark with an O R Securltyholder) you are appointing as your proxy.

%)

or failing the individual or body corporate named, or if no individual or body corporate is named, the Chairman of the Meeting, as myfour proxy at the Annual General Meeting
of engin Limited to be held at Room 7, 38-42 Pirrama Road, Pyrmont NSW 2009 on Monday the 16th of November 2009 at 11.00am and at any adjoumnment
of that meeting, to act on myfour behalf and to vote in accordance with the following directions or if no directions have been given, as the proxy sees fit

STEP 2 - Voting directions to your Proxy - please mark & to indicate your directions

For Against Abstain®
Item 2 To adopt the Remuneration Report for year ended 30 June 2009
ltem 3 To re-elect Mr Ryan Stokes as a director of the Company 11 [
ltem 4 To approve alteration to the Constitution relating to fractional entitlements
[tem 5 To approve share consolidation

The Chairman of the Meeting intends to vote undirected proxies in favaur of each of the items of husiness.

*If you mark the Abstain box for a particular item, you are directing your proxy not to vote on your behalf on a show of hands or on a poll and your vetes wilk not be counted in
computing the required majority on a poll.

STEP 3 - PLEASE SIGN HERE This section must be signed in accordance with the instructions overleaf to enable your directions to be implemented.
Individual or Securityholder 1 Securityholder 2 Securityholder 3

Sole Director and Sole Company Secretary Director Director/Company Secretary

Contact Name ..........cccoevviivvicccemn e Contact Daytime Telephone ..ol Date ! {2009
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

The 2009 year has been a watershed year for engin. The company comaleted
its re-structure, installed a new Management Team and, for the first tima,
reported positive operating profit and positive aperating cash flows in the
second half of the year.

Structural changes to the entire organisation to significantly reduce the
cost base, improve operating efficiencies and lift customer service have
resulted in a lean and focused organisation, which has shown that it can
deliver profitable growth.

The engin business now operates off a mush-strengthened capital base,
has a highly fecused and commitied Management Team and is now hetier
placed than ever to grow and deliver greater value for shareholdars.

It gives me satisfaction o present this 2009 annuaf report fo shareholders
and | ook foerward o your ongoing support of the company.

REDUCTION IN COST

Cost reduction was a focus for the Management Team during the fiscal
year as a key component to take the company to profitability and positive
cash flow. Buring the year the Management Team achieved strong resulis
in lifting gross margin by 15.4% and reducing operating cosis by 40.8%
vs. 2007/8. Encouragingly this focus on cost reduction was achieved while
growing the customer hase and improving customer service,

GROWTH IN REVENUE AND PROFITABILITY

The Gross Revenue and Grass Profit for the year were $20.2M (2007/8:
$19.8M} and $11.6M (2067/8: $10.1M) an increase of 2.3% and 15.4%
respectively. The revenue increase is due to continued subscriber growth,
increased network usage by custemers and the launch of engin’s “naked”
D3L senvice.

Encouragingly the company experienced growih across both its Residential
Market as well as the Business Market for its services.

2 www.engin.com.au

FINANCIAL TURNAROUND

The company defivered a positive Operating Profit (EBITDA) for the second
half of the year of $0.EM, which was a strong turnaround from the loss of
$1.6M in the first half of the year, Importantly the company also achieved
cash flow break-even dusing the year with cash increasing by $0.1M from a
first half balance of $4.2M te $4.3M in the second half,

FUTURE GROWTH

The company has established a bhafanced and robust structure with the
capacity to grow through increase in both customer numbers as welf as
new revenue opportunities. Above al! both the Board and Management are
cemmilted to ensuring that future growth is profitable and sustainable.

‘the company has invested in providing the capability to deliver “naked™
DSL services to its customer hase as welt as ongoing investments in call
centre and sesvice delivery capability. f am confident that 2010 will see
the introduction of a number of ehanges to service delivery and product
offering, which will add to engin's competitive position in the marketplace.

BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

| wouid like to thank the Management Team at engin for their continued
energy and enthusiasm for the company and their leadership during this
challenging period. | also thank my feliow Directors for their contribution.

=

lars Smith
Chairman



GENERAL MANAGER’S REVIEW

GENERAL MANAGER’S REVIEW

FY09 has been & pivotal year for engin, in which the company achieved two
significant milestones. For the half year to June 09 engin recarded a positive
operating profit {EBITDA) and positive cash fiows from operations for the first
time. During this period the company continued to grow Services in Operation
{S10s), launched new products, impraved customer service delivery and
restructured to provide improved focus on key end-user markets.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

=« Positive Operating Profit (EBITDA) of $0.1M for the hait year to June 09
= Positive Operating Cash-flow of $0.1M for the half year to June 09

= Subscriber growth of 6% vs. FY08

= Launch of "Naked” DSL with mere than 1,400 subscribers

¢ Launch of the engin oneHub. A best in elass integrated Internet device
to support sales of engin DSLZ+.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

= Revenue of $20.2M, an increase of 2% vs FY08

*  Gross Margin of $11.6M, an improvement of 15.4% vs. FY08

+ Reduction in Opesating Expenses of 41% vs. FY08 to $13.1M

= Underlying EBITDA of -$1.5 miflion. An improvement of 82% vs. FY(8

= For the period January-June 09 an underlying EBITDA of $0.1M
representing a turnaround of $3.8M for the corresponding period in
H2 FY08.

COMPANY OPERATIONS

engin has lang established itself as the leading provider of VoIP services
in Australia through a focus an innovation, product quality and customer
service and suppart. During FY09 engin continuad te deliver industry
leading service, support and quality while undertaking a significant
restructuring to reduce operating costs and improve profitability and
cash flow.

Kay Focus areas for the business during FYGY were:

COST REDUCTION

During FY09 the company carried out a comprehensive review of structure,
statfing and costs resulting in a re-structure of company operations. As part
of this re-structure headcount was reduced by 183% and operating costs were
reduced by 41%. In addition the company was successful in reducing direct
cost of sales by 11%. These actions resulted in a significant improvement in
operating profit and cash flow during the second half of FY89,

SERVICE DELIVERY AND CUSTOMER
SERVICE EXCELLENGE

Excellent customer service is key fo engin’s offer and represents the
number one priority in delivering satisfaction and value to our customers.

Qutstanding service aliows us to aitract and retain customers and deliver
improved profitability.

engin has pioneered the use of web-hased chat support service to deliver
significant improvements in bath custemer service as wel! as improved
service productivity. Using advanced weh-hased software, engin has
increased its ability to support customers by ever 300%. On-line chat
allows ali customers to web-chat with our sepport team in an instant
and live environment without the need to call a service centre. As a
consequence, engin has successfully defivered higher service Jevels while
reducing cost fo serve by 34% in FY09 vs, FYDS,

PRODUGT AND SERVICE DEVELOPMENT

engin launched its new innovative "Naked” DSL service in October 08
targeting Residential users and quickly achieved a customer base in excess
of 1400 subscribers. "Nakad” DSL was quickly followed by the launch

of the engir oneHuh. The oneHub is a unigue all-in-one Internet device,

whigh provides combined DSL. Modem, Wireless Router and ATA [Voicebox)
capabilities in cne device. engin suecessfully deployed advanced remote
provisioning capability o the oneHub making it a truly “no-fouch” deployment
for customers.

During FY09, engin released a number of products and plans {argeting both
Residential and Smali and Medium Business (SMB) markets. engin’s focus
on innovation will cantinue into FY10 with a number of new roducts and
services cursently being developed by our staff.

OUTLOOK

The growth momentum that engir generated in the second half of the year
has placed the company in a positien of strength going into FY19, Our team
are excited by the challenges ahead and anticipate 2 period of further growth
for the company.

The increasing penetration of higher speed broadband serviges in Australia
will generate greater take-up of VoIP services across both Residential and
Business markets. engin is well placed to take advantage of the increasing
interest in VolP, and with ils leading repuiaticn for service and quality, we
expect continued profitahle growth for the company.

Losking forward engin will focus on delivering profitable growth through
growth in Services In Operation, cost contral and ongoing delivery of value to
eustomers through innovative products and exceilence in customer service
and suppot.

Charles Selomen
General Manager

engin Limited [ABN 46 063 582 $90] Annual Report 2009 3




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This statement outlines the Company’s main corporate goverance
practices and its compliange with the ASK Corporate Governance Gounsil
Recommendations 2nd Edition {"ASX Recommendations™). The Dirzctors
recognise the need to maintain the highest standards of behaviour, ethics
and accountability. Corperate Governance best practice principles assist
the Board in its role to oversee the Company’s affairs.

Corporate governance and corporate practices are available on the
Company's website (www.engin.com.au).

PRINCIPLE 1. LAY SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR
MANAGEMENT AND QVERSIGHT

The Board is empowered to manage the business of the Company subject

te the Corparations Act and the Company’s Constitution. The Board is

responsible for the overall corporate governance of the Company and the

management of the Company. The role, responsibilities and functicns of the

Board are set out in a Farmal Board Charter (a copy of which can be found

on the Company's website). The responsibilities and functions include:

& Quersight of the Cempany, including internal contral and
accountability systems.

= Appointment and removal of the Chief Exacuiive Officer {or equivalent).

= Annual review of the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and
senior management.

= Ratification of appointment and, where appropriate, the remevat of the
Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) and the Company Secretary.

= Pravide input and final approval of management’s developed corporate
strategy and performance chjectives.

s Qonfirm processes are in ptace to ensure agherence to appropriate
risk management, internal control, Code of Gonduct and statutory
compliance requirements.

= Fyaluate manzgement perfermance, implementation of business
strategy and ensure appropriate resources are available.

= Approve and monitor major capital expenditure.

= Approve and monitor relevant reporting.

« Appoint members of the Audit Commitiee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

+ Establish limits of authority for the Chief Executive Officer ang
senior management fo conduct day-to-day management of the
Company's activiiies.

The Board delegates to the Chief Executive Officer and senior managers
respensible to him the authorify to manage the Company's day-to-day
activities, and the implementation of corparate abjectives.

It is 1he role of management o manage the Company in accordance
with the direction determined by the Board and the Board’s delegations
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to management under the Company's Delegated Authority Pelicy. Formal
delegations from the Board to management and functions reserved to the
Board are set out in the Company’s Delegated Authority Policy.

The Policy provides that the pewers and functions retained by the Board
include decisions about Company strategy and policies, as well as matters
involving amounts over specified limits (which varies depending upon the
nature of the transaction). The Board, or the Remuneration Committee,
also has autharity for succession planning and remuneration of the Chief
Executive Officer and his direct reporls.

All matters and functions not specificaliy reserved for the Board and
necessary for the day o day management of the Company are delegated
to management. For example, the Policy detaiis procedures for the
authorisation and signing of Gempany contracts and authorisations te
relevant executives in relation to expenditere. Executive management can
sub delegate where appropriate.

As part of the framework set up by the Delegated Authority Pelicy,
management is required to repert regularly to the Board concerning the
acthority exercised and matters which come, or may come within, the scope
of matters reserved for the Board, The reports cover a range of matiers,
including sub defegations, any litigation activity, financial performance and
risk management.

The functions exercised by the Board and those delegated te management
are subject to ongoing review to ensure that the division of functions
remains appropriate. A copy of the Delegated Authority Policy can be found
&n the Company’s website.

The performance of senior executives of the Company is evaluated

both formally (through a documented interview process) and informally
throughout the year. The performance of the Chief Executive Officer (or
equivalent) is fermally reviewed annually by the Chairman apd Board.
Throughout the year, his performance is subject to engoing Board scrutiny.

The performance of senior executives is formally reviewed annually by

the Chief Executive Officer, who may in turn seek Board review. Senior
management competencies and performance are reviewed. Throughout the
year, the perfermance of senior management is subject to ongoing scrutiny
by the Chief Executive Officer. During the 2009 financial year, additionally,
a review of senior management performance was underiaken by the
Noemination Committee.

Both the Chief Executive Officer and senior executives are appraised
apainst set objectives, either chosen at the beginning of the year or
added during the year. These ohjectives are selected to enhance Company
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performance and increase value to shareholders, having ragard to the
relevant executive's duties and material areas of responsibility. The
objectives and assessment criteria will in some instances be linked to the
executive’s particular remunsration arrangements.

Performance reviews of senior exacutives have taken place during the year
in accordance with these evaluation processes.

Induction procedures are in place to enable senior exacutives to participate
fully and actively in the management of the Company at the earliest
opporiunity, An induction program is available that enables senior
executives to gain an understanding of the Company’s financial position,
strategies and operatigns, risk management poficies and the respective
rights, duties, responsibilities and roles of the Board and senior executives.

PRINGIPLE 2. STRUCTURE THE BOARD TO
ADD VALUE

As at the date of this statement, the Board currently comprises four (4)
diractors. The Directors in office are:

« Mr lan Smith, Nen executive Director and Independent Chairman

+ Mr Rohan Lund, Non executive Director

= NMr8ruce McWilliam, Non executive Director

o M Ryan Stokes, Non executive Direcior

Details of Directors, including their time in office, qualifications, experience
and special responsibilities are set out in the Directors’ Report.

The Company does not currently have a Chief Executive Officer. Mr Charles
Sclomen is the Company’s General Managar.

The following principles and guidelines are considered in assessing the
composition of the Board:

= The Board determines the aptimai aumbher of boaré members ranging
from a minimum of three to a maximum of twelve members as
stipulated in the Company coastitution.

« The Board should inciude directors with a broad range of industsy,
management and professional experience.

s |deally the Board should comprise a majority of independent directors.

+ The Board will appoint a Chairman who is a nen executive director and
independent, as defined by the Company’s Criteriz on Independence of
Drectors. Mr Smith has been appointed Chairman ir accordance with
these Criteria.

In determining whether & Director is independent, the Board conducts
regular assessments and has regard to whether a Director is considered to
be one who:

+ is a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or
otherwise associated directly with, a substantial shareholder of
the Company;

e js employed, or has previously been employed in an executive capacity
by the Company cr another greup member, and there has not bean a
period of at least thiee yzars between ceasing such employment and
serving on the Board:

+ has within the last three years been a principat of a material
professional adviser or a material consultant to the Company or
ancther group membher, or an employes materially associated with the
service provided;

= js a material supplier or customer of the Company or ather group
member, or an officer of or otkerwise associated directly or indirectly
with a material supplier or sustomer;

# has a material contractual refationship with the Company or another
group member other than as a Director,

The Board has previously determined that a material refationship is to be
determined on the basis of iees paid or moneys received or paid to either
a Director or a Director-related entity, which may impact the EBITDA of the
Company in the previeus financial year by more than 5%.

The Board acknowledges the ASX Recommendation that a majority of

the Board shouid be independent directors; however the Chairman and
Directers believe they are able to objectively analyse the issues before them
in the best interests of all shareholders and in accordance with their duties
as directors. Whilst Mr McWilliam and Mr Stekes are associated with a
substantial shareholder of the Cempany, ihe Chairman and Directors are
satisfied that they are free of any business or other relationship that could
materiatly interfere with the independent exercise of their judgement.

With the prior approval of the Chairman, each Director has the right to seek
independent legal and other professioral advice at the Company’s expense
concerning any aspect of the Company's operations or undertakings in
order to fulfil their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Directors are
enceuraged to access members of the senior management team regularly,
and to request relevant information as required.

The Directors meet regularly with the senior executives, discussing
achievements and making suggestions and recommendations. Particular
emphasis is pfaced on the nced for compliance with legislation in areas
such as trade practices, environmental, occupational health and safety and
the Corperations Act.

The Board has established & Nominatien ard Remuneration Committee,
ke membership of which comprises Mr Smith, {independent chair), and
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Mr Stokes. The selection and appaintment of new diractors is done with
reference to the Nomination Commitiee Charter which is available on the

Company website.

The process for appointing a Director is that when the Board cansiders

that a vacancy exists for a Board appointment, the Board, assisted by

the Nomination Committes, identifies candidates with the approgriate
expertise and experignee, and may at its discretion use external consultants
as appropriate. The most suitable carndidate is appointed by the Board.
New appointees to the Board stand for election in accordance with the
Constitution at the next Anrual General Meating.

The number of meetings attended by the Nomination Committee members
is disclased in the Directors® Report.

Whilst acknowledging the ASX Recommendation that the Namination
Committee comprise a majority of independent directors and at teast
three members, the Board is safisfied that its two member Committee can
sufficiently and objectively analyse the issues before them.

The Boazd will review the performance of individual directors annually with
the assistance of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee. The basis
of the evaluation will include:

= Reviewing adhgrence to the Formal Board Charter.

= Defining professionat development requirements of individual Board
Members.

» Setting Board ohjectives and Key Performance Indicators for the
upcoming year.

A performance review of individuat directors took piace in the 2009
financial year in accordance with these evaluation processes.

The Chairman closely monitors the performance and actions of the Baard
ard its Commitiees and met with individuat Board mambers during the year
to ensure that both the Board and its Committees operated in an effective
and efficient manner,

During the 2009 financial year, the Ghairman, with the assistance of
the Nomination Committee, undertock a review of Board composition
and performance.

Remuneration of executives and directors is reviewed by the Committee
in accordance with its Charter. For further detail, please rafer to the
Remuneration Report,
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PRINCIPLE 3. PROMOTE ETHICAL AND
RESPONSIBLE DECISION MAKING

As part of the Board's commitment to the highest standards of conduct

and integrity, the Company adopts & Code of Gonduct which clarifies to
directors, maragement and employees the standards of ethical behaviour
required In carrying out their duties and responsibilities. The Board and
serior management are committed to the promulgation and implementation
of the Code of Cenduct throughout the Company.

The Code of Conduct covers such matters as:

» Canflicts of interest;

» Fair dealing;

= Protection and proper use of company assets;

« Compliance with laws and regulations;

= Whistle blower protection;

« Relations with customers and suppliers;

= Ethical responsibitities;

= Employment practices; and

¢ Responsibilities to the envirenment and the community,

A copy of the Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website.

The Gempany has adopted a share trading policy allowing directors and
nominated senicr staff to trade in the Company's securities generaily only
in the six-week period {ollowing the release of the Company’s half yearly
results and yearly resuls to the ASX and after the Annual General Meeting,
Senior staif also require the approval of the Board prior to frading in the
Company’s securities, Trading outside the above periods must be first
sanctiened by the Board: who must be satisfied that the trade does not
result from the possession of any price sensitive information that has not
been refeased fo the ASK.

A copy of the share trading policy is avaiiable on the Company's website.

Directors’ shareholdings in the Company are shown in the Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPLE 4, SAFEGUARD INTEGRITY IN
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board maintains an Audit Committee which comprises Mr McWilliam,
as its Chairman, and Mr Smith. Mr McWiliiam is 2 ron executive Director
and Mr Smith is a nor executive and independent Director. Whilst
acknowledging the ASX Recommendation that the Audit Committee
comprise a majority of independent directors and af least three members,
the Board is satisfied that its two member Committee can sufficiently and
objectively analyse the issues before them. Both Mr McWiliiam and Mr
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Smith kave wide financial and audit commmittee experfence. Information
about the qualifications of Messrs McWilliam and Smith and their
attendance at Audit Committee meetings is containad within the Diractors’
Report. The Board believes the ASX Recommendation is satisfied as regards
the technical expertise of the Audit Commitiee members.

The Audit Commities has a formal Charter, a summary of which is
available on the Company’s website. The Committee’s primary objective

is fo assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities concerning the
accounting and reporting practices of the Company and its subsidiaries,
the consideration of matters relaling to the financial affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries and examination of any ather matters referred to it by
the Board.

The Audit Commitiee is also responsible for assessing whether non-audit
services provided by the external auditor are consistent with maintaining
the external auditor’s independence. Each reporiing period, the external
auditor provides an independence declaration in refation to the audit.

The current practice is for the rotatian of the appropriate external audit
pariner to accur every five years, subject to the requirements of applicable
professional and regulatory requirements. No rotation has yet occurrad; as
the incumbent external auditor firm was appointed by sharehalders at the
2008 Annual General Meeting.

The number of meetings attended by the Audit Committee members is
disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPLE 5. MAKE TIMELY AND
BALANCED DISCLOSURE

The Board is commitied to ensuring price sensitive information is released
to the ASX in accordance with continuous disclosure requirements per
ASX Listing Rule 3.1. All reparts made to the ASX are published on the
Company’s website www.engin.com.au.

The Company complies with the continusus disclosuse obligations of the
ASX Listing Rules and, in doing so, immediately notifies the market of any
material price sensitive information. The continuous disclosure policy is
available on the Company'’s website.

The Campany Secretary has been naminated as the person with primary
responsibility for compliance with and communication and Iiaison with the
ASX in relation to ASX Listing Rules and continuous disclosure issues. The
Company Secretary alsa has responsibility for ensuring internal compliance
with those ASX Listing Rules and the oversight of information released to
the ASX and shareholders.

GE STATEI

PRINCIPLE 6. RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to providing effective lines of com munication

for shareholders and all other stakeholders te easily access Company
information. The following channels of communicatien have been adopted
to facilitate the fair, timely and cost effective dissemination of information:

= Annual General Meetings and any other formally convened Company
meetings. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings and are invited to put questions to the Chairman of the Board
in that farum.

& Company website at www.engin.com.au which enables broader access
fo Company information by investors and stakehelders. Copies of annual
ard half-year financiat reports as well as all ather announcements
made to the ASX are posted after disclosure to the market.

= Annual repori, which is availaple to all shareholders.

+ [irect communication — the company may alse communicate with
shareholders, on matters of significance directly via mail, or email.

The Directors ensure that the Company’s external auditor attends ali Annyal
General Meetings and is available to answer sharehelders’ questions ahout
the conduct of the audit and the preparatior and content of the Auditor’s
repert thereon.

The Gompany’s formal Communication Policy is available on its website.

PRINGIPLE 7. RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RiSK

The Board has established a forazal charter, which provides an aapropriate
frameworlk for the oversight and management of material business risks
and threats faced hy the Company. The Board and the Audit Committes are
responsibie for adherence to the charter.

A copy of the Risk Management Gharter, specifying on the management of
various categories of risk, is available on the Company's website.

The cperationat and financial aspects of the Company’s activities, including
risk management, are menitered by the Board and the Audit Commitiee.
Through the Audit Committee the Board considers the recommendations
and advice of externzl audtars and other external advisers on the
operational and financial risks that face the Company.

The Board ensures that recommendations made by the external auditors
anc other external advisers are investigated and, where considered
necessary, appropriale action is taken to ensure that the Company has
an appropriate infernal control environment in place to manage the key
risks identified.
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During the year, threugh the Board, and facilitated by an exteral
consuliant, managemeni undertook a detailed Sirategic Risk Assessment
which identified and ranked the key strategis risks facing the Company,
these being in the operations category, and provided an assessment of the
Company's management of those risks, which was considerad satisfactory.
The assessment also assisted with the development of 2 formal risk profile.

Having regard to the size of the Company, the Beard has required
management to design and implement the risk management and internal
contral system ouilined 2bove fo manage the Gompany’s material business
risks and report to it on whethar those risks are being managed effactively.
Management has reporied to the Board as 1o the effectiveness of the
Campany’s management of material business risks. Senior management
is respansible for the implementation of appropriate controls and risk
mitigation sirategies as direciad,

The Board receives monthly reporting relating to the financial position and
performanse of the consolidated entity.

Pursuant to Section 2954 of the Corporations Act, the Chief Executive
QOfficer and the Chief Financial Officer confirin in writing to the Board, who
subsequently state ir writing to the exterral auditors, that the financial
records of the Company have been properly maintained, the financial
stalemenis are prepared in accordance with relevant accounting standards,
prasent a true and Tair view, and that the integrity of the financial reports

is foundad on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance
and control systems which, in all material raspects, implement fhe policies
prescribad by the Board.

PRINCIPLE 8. REMUNERATE FAIRLY
AND RESPONSIBLY

The total maximum remuneration of pon executive directors was approved
by shareholders at $500,000 per annum on 20 Navember 2006. The
approved limit provides adequate fiexibility for the appointment of
additional directors.

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the remuneration of the Chairman was
$139,000 per annum plus superannuation. Messrs Lund, McWilliam and
Stokes received no remuneration from the Company during the financial
yaar. No Director was granted options or received a honus payment dusing
the financial year. No Director received a retirement benefit, other than the
payment of superannuation on behalf of the Chairman.

The Board has esiablished a Nomination and Remuneration Commitize,
the membership of which comprises Mr Smith, (independent chair}, and Mr
Stokes. The functians of the Committee include review and recommendation
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to the Board in relation 1o the remuneration framework for the Board,
executive remuneration and incentive policies and succession planning. A
copy of the Committee's Gharter is available on the Company’s website. The
rumber of meetings attended by the Committee members is disclosed in
the Directors’ Report.

Whilst acknowledging the ASX Recommendation that the Remuneration
Committee comprise a majority of independent directors and at least
three members, the Board is satisfied that its two member Gommittee can
sufficiently and ohjectively analysa the issues before them.

The objective of the remuneration process is o ensure that remuneration
packages propery reflect the duties and sesponsibilities of the employee
and that the remuneration is at an appropriate but competitive market rate
which enables the Company to attract, retain and motivate peeple of the
kighest guality.

Because there are no unvested entitlements on issue, the Company did

not consider it necessary or desirable to develop a policy on prohibiting
entesing into transactions in associzted preducts which limit the economic
risk of participating in unvested entitlersents under any equity-based
remuneration schemes. The Company wilf continue fo manitor the
appropriateness of this approach, and will implement such a policy i it
determines that these ¢ircumstances have changed and one is required.

Further details relating to remuneration, including executive remuneration,
are contained within the Remuneration Repert.



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of engin Limited submit herewith the annuat financial report of the campany for the financial vear ended 30 June 2009, In ocder to comply with
the provisions of the Corporations Ast 2001, the directors’ report follows.
The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

DIRECTORS
MARE PARTICULARS
lar Smith A director of the company since September 2007. Chairman since January 2008.

Non executive director
Independent Chairman

Mr Smith brings & wealth of experience in the media and communications industry to the company,

with over 20 years in the advertising business. He was appeinted a director of Connxion Ventures Limited
on 20 Juiy 2009. Mr Smith's previous roles include CEQ of Yahoo!7, CEQ of The Communications Group
Holdings Pty Limited, President International for Bates Worldwide ané a board director of Cordiant
Communications pic. Mr Smith is a member of the Audit and Risk Management committee and a member
ard chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration committee.

fohan Lund

Non executive dizector

A director of the company since October 2006. Mr Lund is currently the GEO of Yahoo!7. He was
previously the Director Digital Media for Seven Network Limited oversesing all digital interests for Seven
Network Limiled, including Yahoo!7, m.Net and digita! television. He was previously Director Corporate
Development and Strategy for Singte! Optus. Mr Lund is also a Director of Yahoo!7 and previously

a director of m.Net Cerporation.

Bruce McWilliam
Hon execulive director

A director of the company since Octeber 2006. Mr McWilliam has beer a director of Seven Network Limited
since September 2003, He was appointed Commercial Director for Seven Network Limited in May 2603, He
is an alterrate director of West Australian Newspapers Holdings Limited. Pricr te joining Seven Network
Limited, he was a former partner of [aw firms Gilbert & Tohin, Turnbull MeWilliam and Allen Allen &
Hemsley specialising in media and commercial law, He is a former director of BSkyB and General Counsel
of News Infernational ple. Mr McWilliam is 2 member and chairman of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee,

Ryan Stokes

Non executive director

A director of the company since October 2006, Mr Stokes has been a director of Seven Network Limited
since December 2005. He is the current President of Seven Network Asia and a director of Yahoo!7
and former Chairman of Pacific Magazines. He is an alternate director of West Austealian Newspapers
Holdings Limited. He is also an executive and dizector of Australian Capita! Equity Pty Limited and
other cempanies including WesTrac Pty Limited. Mr Stokes was appeinted to the Board of Consolidated
Media Holdings Limited on 10 September 2009, Mr Stekes is a member of the Nomination and
Remuneraticn committee.

DIRECTORSHIPS OF OTHER LISTED COMPANIES

Directorships of other listed comparies held by directors in the three years immediately before the end of the financial year are as follows:

NAME COMPANY PERIOD OF DIRECTORSHIP
Bruce McWitliam Seven Network Limited Since September 2003
Bruce McWilliam Unwired Group Limited January 2008 (company de-listed May 2008)

Bruce McWilliam

West Australian Newspapers Holdings Limited Since 4 November 2008

Ryan Stokes Seven Network Limited Since December 2005
Ryar Stokes Unwired Group Limited January 2008 {company de-listed May 2008)
Ryan Stokes West Australian Newspapers Holdings Limited Since 4 November 2008
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COMPANY SECRETARY

John Kinninmont

Company Secrefary since 17 April 2008. Bachelar of Economics {University
of Sydney} and a Fellow of Chartered Secretaries Australia. Mr Kinninmont
has been a Company Secreiary af Saven Network Limited for the past

ten years. He is Company Secrefary for the Seven Madia Group.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the consolidated entity during the financial year
was the delivery of broadband telephony services and the sale of related
hardware o its customars, hranded as “engin”.

NET CONSOLIDATED PROFIT

The nel amount of consolidated profit/(loss) of the consolidated entity
for the financial year after provision for income taxes was ($6,76¢,201)
{2008: ($12,168,391)).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A review of the operations during the financial year of the consolidated
entity, and of the results of those operations, and of the financial position
of the consclidated entity is set out in 3he Annoal Repori under the heading
“Chairman’s statement”.

CHANGE IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

During the financial year there were no significant changes in the state of
affairs of the consolidated entity other than that referred to in the financial
siatements or notes thereto.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no subsequent events fo report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Disclosure of information regarding likely developments in the operations
of the consolidated entity in future financial years and the expected rasulis
of those operations is likely to result in unreasenahle prejudice to the
consolidated entity. Accordingly, this information has not been disclosed
in this raport,
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DIVIDENDS

There have been no dividends paid or declared since the beginning of the
financiat year, and the directors do not recommend the payment of
& dividend in respect of the financial year,

SHARE OPTIONS

Share options granted to directors and executives
Buring the financial year no optiens wese granted to directors or executives.

Shares under option er issued on exercise of options

There were no shares or interests issued during or since the end of the
financial year as a result of exercise of eptiens.

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND AUDITORS

During the financiai year, the company paid a premium in respect of

a contract insuring the directors of the cempany (as named above),

the company secretary and all executive officers of the company against

2 liahility incurred as a director, secretary or executive officer to the extent
permitted by the Cerporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits
disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premivm.

The company has not ctherwise, during or since the end of the financial
year, except to the extent permitted by faw, indemnified or agreed fo
indemnify an officer or auditor of the company or of any related bedy
cerporate of the company against a liability incurred as such an officer
or auditor.

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

The following tahle sets cut the rumber of directers’ meetings {including
meelings of committees of directors) held during the financial year and the
number of meetings attended by each director (whife they were 2 director
o commiltee member). During the financial year 15 Board meetings,

three Audit and Risk Management Commitiee and one Remuneration and
Nomination Committee meetings were held.



DIRECTGRS' MEETINGS onnmozn)

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITIEE
BIRECTORS HELD ATENDED HELD ATTENDED HELD ATTENDED
lan Smith 15 15 1 1
Ryan Stokes 15 14 1 1 3 3
Bruce McWilliam 15 14 - - 3 3
Rohan Lund 15 9 - - 2 2
1]] RECTG RS’ SH AREH [}LD | NG S and to ensuze that remuneration packages properly reflect the duties and
responsibitities of the staff member, inciuding the impact they are expected
Mr Stokes and Mr McWilliam are both directors of Seven Nelwork Limited, 1o have on operational and financial performance.
which ultimately holds 369,018,234 shares in the company. No director or
director related entilies hold shares in the company other than the Seven Key management personnel have avthority and responsibility for planing,
Network Limited shareholding disclosed. directing and controlling the activities of the Company. For 2009, key
management personrel cemprise the Directors of the company, the General
REMUNERA‘"GN REPQ RT Manager, the Head of Finarce and the Head of Operations. The GEQ and
. o . the Head of Sales were considered key management personnel during the
Remuneration and Nemination committee year but did not hold their positions at the end of the year. The company
The Remuneration and Nominatian Committee is responsible for making secrelary is a Company Executive.

recommendations to the Board on remuneration and compensation policies

and packages for all staff, including Beard members and executives of Remuneration structure

the Groug. It oversees the appoiniment and induction process for directors Remuneration Jevels for Key Management Persornel and Executives

and committes members, and the election, appeintment and succession are competitively set te attract and retain appropriately qualified and
planning process of the Company's General Manager. experienced individuais.

Role of the committee Fixed remuneration

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee operates in accordance with Fixed remuneration consists of base remungration (which is calculated
its Charter; its responsibilities include review and recommendation to the on 4 total cost basis and includes fringe benefits tax charges related to
Board on: employee benefits), as well as empioyer conisibutions to superanauation

funds and guaranteed borus payments. Remuneration levels are reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee through a process that considers
individual, segment and overal! performance of the Group.

= Executive remuneration and incentive policies
« Ensuring policy allows the company to recruit and retain suitably
qualified executives

¢ Remuneration framework for directors Performance-linked remuneration
 Aligning the interests of key employees to the long term interests Performance-linked remuneraticn i designed to reward key management
of shareholders personnel for meeting or exceeding their financial and personai objectives.

« Demonstraie a clear relationship between key executive performance

and remuneration The company did not pay performance-linked remuneration to any key

management perseane! during the financial year.

Membhership .
) ) . Directors of the company
The current members of the committee are Mr Smith (Chairman) and
Mr Stokes The following persons acted as directors of the company during or since the
end of the financial year:
Remuneration principles and policy » 1. Smith, Independent Chairman, Non executive director
The key principles of the Company Remuneration Policy are to remunerate = R. Stokes, Non executive diractor
and compansate fairly and responsibly; ta remunerate competitively + B, McWilliam, Non executive director

enabling the attraction, retention and mativation of staff of the highest

) . , L « R, Lund, Non executive director
quality and best skills from the industry in which the company operates;
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REMUNERATION REPORT wonrmum;

The total maximum remuneration of non executive directors is $500,000
per annum {as appraved by shareholders on 20 November Z006).

Apart from Mr Smith, the directors did not receive any fixed remuneration
during the year,

The Diregtars received no performance-linked remuneration during the year.
No options were granted to any Direetor during the year, nor did any Director
hold or exercise options in the Company during the year.

Company Executives

The Executives discussed in this section are Mr Solamon (General Manager,
Mr Gepp (Head of Finance) and Mr Dollar (Head of Operations}, all of who
are members of the Company's Key Management Personnel and who ware

Key management personnel — Directors

employed for the duration of the year and at 30 June 2009, except for

Mr Solomon, who joined the company in August 2008. Mr Zworestine and
Mr Farmer were considered Key Management Personnal during the year but
were no longer employed by the Company at 30 June 2009. Mr Kinninmont
(Company Secretary) is a Company Executive.

The Company Executives received no performance-linked remuneration
during the year. No options were granfed to any Company Executive during
the year, nor did any Company Executive hold or exercise optiens in the
Company during the year.

In the opirion of the Beard, there are no other Key Management Perscnnel
{as defined by AASB 124) employed by the consolidated entity.

Remuneratien and compensation details of Directors and Company
Executives for the year ended 30 June 2009 are shown below.

POST SHARE-BASED
SHORT TLRM BENEFITS EMPLOYMENT PAYMERTS
SALARY HON- SUPER-  TERKINATION
AND FEES BOMUS MONETARY ANRUATION BEREFITS OPTIONS TOTAL
8 $ 3 % $ 3 b3

L. Smith (Chairman)
2009 139,000 - - 12,510 - -
2008 124,493 - - 11,204 - -
R. Stokes ™
2609 - - - - - -
2008 - - - - - {21,860} ™
B. McWilliam '
2009 ~ - - - - -
2008 - - - - - (21,500) ®
R. Lung ¥
2009 - - - - - -
2008 - - - - - (21,800) ™
Total Directors
2009 139,000 - - 12,510 - -
2008 124,493 - - 11,204 - (65,400}

[a]  MrStokes, Mr McWilliam and Mr Lund received no remuneration for services performed in the current or previous financial year.
[b]  Reversal of prior period accrual of fees eamed. Fees no longer required to be paid at request of specified directors,
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REMUNERATION REPORT commem)

Key management personnel — Executives and Campany Executives

POST SHARE-BASED
SHORT TERM BEREFITS ERPLOYMENT PATHIENTS
SALARY HON- SUPER-  TERMINATION
AND FEES BORYUS MONETARY ARNNUATION BENEFIS OPTIONS
$ $ § 3 ) 8
C. Soiomen
(General Manager) ©
2009 232,159 - - 20,850 - -
2008 - - - - - -
J. Kinrinmont
(Company Secretary) ™
2009 - - - - - -
2008 - - - - - -
M. Gepp
(Head of Finance) ¥
2009 180,000 - - 16,200 - -
2008 57,500 - - 5175 - -
G. Dollar
(Head of Operatiens)
2009 180,000 - - 16,200 - -
2008 60,000 - - 3,849 - -
M. Zworesline
{resigned 21 October 2008)
2009 120,170 - - 9,000 150,000 -
2008 184,938 - - 17,048 - 140,000
M. Farmer
(resigned 25 November 2008)
200% 78,463 - - 6,938 46,251 -
2008 153,578 - 15,894 15,347 - 42,9354
Total Senior Management
2009 790,792 - - 69,188 196,251 -
2008 456,416 - 15,894 41,419 - 182,935

e}
Ll
fe]
il
{g]

Because thare are no unvested enfitlements on issue, the Company did nat consider it necessary or desirable te develop a policy or prohibiting entering into
transactions in associated products which limit the economic risk of participating in unvested entitlements under any equity-based remuneration schemes.

Mr Kinninmont received no remuneration for senvices performed in the current or previous financial year.
Repsesents 40.9% of total remuseration.

Represents 18.8% of total remusieration.

M+ Solomon has been employed since }1 August 2008,

Wr Gepp has heen employed since 13 February 2008.

engin Limited [ABN 46 063 582 9907 Annual Report 2008 13




{EPORT

ECTORS

RETIUNERATION REPORY covmmuen

Employment contracts

The remuneration and ather terms of empleyment for ihe Executives named above are set out in written employment agreements. Each of these employment
agreemenis are unlimited in ferm buf may be terminated by wiitten natice by either party and by the Company making payment in lieu of notice, The amount
of notice required from the Company in these circumstances is set out in the following tabie:

HAME OF EXECUTIVE COMPANY NOTICE PERIOD EMPLOYEE NOTICE PERIOD TERMINATION PROVISION
C. Solomon 6 menths 3 months 6 months base salary
M. Gepp 3 months 3 months 3 menths base salary
G. Dollar 3 months 3 months 3 manths base salary

Each of the agreements sets out the arrangement for fotal fixed remuneration, performance-related cash bonus opportunities, superannuation and
fermination rights and obligations. Executive salaries are reviewed annually. The executive employment agreements do rot require the company 1o increase
base salary, incentive bonuses or to continue the participants’ participation in equity-based incentive programs.

Value of options issued to directors and executives
No options were issued during or since the end of the financial year.

Remuneration policy and company performance
The able helow sets out summary information about the consolidated entity's earnings and movements in sharehalder wealth for the five years to June 2609:

30 JUNE 2009 30JUNE 2008 30 JURE 2007 30 JUNEZ006 30 JURE 2005

Net profit/{loss) after tax ($) (12,168,301) (17,337,392 (7,316,252) 3,935,447
Basic earnirgs/{loss) per share {cents} {2.90 (5.59) (3.67) 3.50
Share price {cents) 2.1 18.0 22.5 9.6
Dividend [cents per share) - - - 9.0

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The current auditor, being KPMG, performed no non-audit services during the financial vear.

In the prior year, the directors were satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the then auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was compatible with the
general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001.

Amounts paid or payable to the 2008 auditors (Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu) for non-audit services performet during the year was $Nil (2008: $20,000). All
amounts paid or payable to the auditor are outlined in note 6 fo the financial statements.
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AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The auditor’s independence dectaration is included on page 16 of the financial report.

Signed for and on behalf of the Board af Directors and in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

—

lan Smith
Chairman
Sydney, 17 September 2009

engin Limited [ABN 46 063 582 990] Annual Report 2009
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

VEAR ENDED 30 JURE 2009

Lead Auditor’s Independence Decluration undey Section 347C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: the directors of Engin Limited

I declare that, to the best of 'my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial
year ended 30 June 2009 there have been:

(i}  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the andit; and

{(if)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

47

KPMG

Kemeth Reid
Partner

Sydney

17 September 2009
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INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ERDED 30 JUNE 2089

GONSULIDATED COMPARY
2008 2008 2008 2008

NOTE $ $ % b3
Continuing operations .
Reverue from ordinary activities 2 15,755,580 -
Communication expenses (7,455,151} : -
Gost of hardware soid (2,194,304) | -
Gross Profit 10,106,125 -
Other income 2 3,725,834 3,725,334
Employee expenses (12,340,429) & -
Marketing expenses (3,577,911) . e
Drcupancy expenses (510,002) -
Other operating expenses (5,778,132) _ -
Depreciatien, amertisation and impairment expense Z (3,384,939 | -
Write down of whoily owned subsidiary receivable - po (36,559,991}
Results from operating activities (11,759,454) |: {32,834,137)
Finance income 317,388 -
Finance expenses 2 {726,325) (533,760}
Net finance income/(expense) {408,937 (533,760
Profit/{ioss) before income tax (12,168,391) | (33,367,917}
Income tax expense 3 - -
Profit/(Inss) for the year (12,168,391) | (33,367,917}
Earnings/(Loss) per share (cents per share)
From continuing operations:
Basic 21 (2.90)
Diluted 21 {2.50)

The notes or pages 21 to 44 are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS

FOR THE FIRANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2008 2004 2008
RGTE $ ) $ 3
CGurrent assets :
Cash and cash equivalents 28 6,583,252 -
Trade and ofher receivehies 7 1,426,253 -
Inventories 8 721,173 -
Other assets 9 286,518 -
Total currant assets 9,027,237 -
Non-current assets
Receivable from controlled entities 7 - 12,000,000
{investments accounted for using the equity method 10 1 -
Property, plant and equipment 11 5,141,364 -
Customer management and billing system 11 3,851,530 -
Total non-current assets 9,092,895 8 _11-- : 12,000,000
Total assets 18,120,132 11,9_59;895;; 12,000,000
Current liabilities
Trade and other payahies 13 4,086,018 -
Borrowings — Finance lease liability 14 1,202,802 -
Provisions 15 314,374 -
Total current liahilities 5,613,194 -
Non-current liabilities
Barsewings — Finance lease [iability 16 436,394 -
Provisions 17 81,651 -
Total non-current liabilities 498,545 -
Total liabilities 6,111,739 -
Net assets 12,008,393 12,000,000
Equity
Issued capital 18 45,079,667 45,079,667
Reserves 19 - EiG -
Retained earnings/(accumulated fosses) 20 (33,071,274) : (33,079,667}
Total equity 5733900 12,008,393 12,000,000

The notes on pages 21 to &4 are an integral part of these sonsolidated financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

CONSOLIDATED COMPARY
2009 2008 2009 2008
HGTE $ 3 $ g
Gash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 22,269,397 14,243
Payments to suppliers and employees (36,226,398} 1 76,498
interest and other costs of finance paid {726,325) {533,760)
Net cash used in operating activities 28(b) (14,683,326) | (443,019)
Cash flows from investing activities
Amounts {advanced to)/paid by subsidiary - | (11,487,580)
Payment for property, plant and equinment (2,037,108} |- -
Interest received 317,388 -
Payment for purchase of Unwired Group Limited
shareholding {21,463,784) | {21,463,784)
Proceeds from sale of Unwired Group Limited :
shareholding 25,175,373 25,175,373
Net cash fram investing activities 1,991,783 {7,776,291)
Gash flows from financing activities
Preceeds from convertible lean note 20,816,524 20,816,524
Repayment of convertible [oan note {20,816,524) (20,816,524)
Repayment of borrowings (1,235,171) -
Proceeds from issues of equily securities 8,430,666 |- 8,430,666
Share issue costs (211,356} {211,356)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 6,584,139 8,219,310
et {decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (5,707,404) -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 12,296,656 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 28(a) 6,583,252 -

The notes on pages 21 to 4 are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ERDED 36 JUNE 2009

Consolidated

EMPLOYEE
BENERTS RETAINED
SHARE CAPITAL RESERVE EARMINGS TOTAL EQUITY
$ $ $ 5
Balance at 1 July 2007 35,451,483 1,309,360 (20,962,883) 15,857,960
Totai recognised income and expense - - (12,168,391) (12,168,391)
Recogaition of share-based payments 1,408,874 (1,309,360) - 99514
Issue of shares 8,430,666 - - 8,430,666
Share issue cost (211,356} - - (211,356}
Balance as at 30 June/1 July 2008 45,079,667 - (33,071,274) 12,008,393
Total recognised income and expense - - {6,760,201) {6,760,201)
Share issue cost (14,898} - - (14,898)
Balance at 30 june 2009 45,064,769 - (39,831,475) 5,233,294
Eompany
EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS RETAINED
SHARE CAPITAL RESERVE EARRNINGS TOTAL EQUITY
$ § 3 3
Balance at 1 July 2007 35,451,483 1,309,360 288,250 37,045,093
Total recognised income and expense - - (33,367,817) (33,367,917
Recognition of share-based payments 1,408,874 (1,309,350 - 99,514
Issue of shares 8,430,666 - - 8,430,666
Share issue cost {211,356) - - {211,356)
Balance at 30 June/1 July 2008 45,079,567 - (33,679,667 12,060,000
Total recognised income and expense - - {15,207} {15,207}
Share issue cost (£4,898) - - (14,898)
Balance at 30 June 2009 45,064,769 - {33,094,874}

The notes on pagas 21 io 44 are an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JIRE 2009

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purposa financial repart which has been
prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting
Standards and Urgen{ Issues Group Interpretations, and compfies with
other requirements of the law. Accounting Standards include Australian
equivalents fo International Financial Reperting Standards (‘A-IFRS').
Compliance with the A-IFRS ensures that the consolidatad financiat
statements and notes of the consofidaied entity comply with International
financial Reporting Standards {'IFRS").

The financial statements were authorised for isstse by the directors on
17 September 2609,

Basis of preparation

The finangial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost.
Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

The following significant accounting policies kave been adopted in the
preparation and presentation of the financial report:

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are describad
below, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are

not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates ard associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstance, the results af
which form the basis of making the judgements. Actual resulis may differ
fram these estimates.

The estimates and assumgtions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Going concern

The financial report has been prepared on the basis that engin is a going
goncern, which assumes continuity of normal business activities and the
realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course
of business. Based on current cash and profit projections the Directors
believe this is an apprapriale basis,

Stgnificant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have heen adopted in the
preparation and presentation of the financial report:

{a) Accounts payable

Teade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the
consolidaled entity becomes obliged to make future payments resulting
frem the purchase of goods and services.

{b} Bareowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised
cost with any difference between the initial recogrised amount and the
redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the pericd of the
borrowing using the effective interest rate method.

{¢) Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs directly attributable to assets under construction are
capitalised as pari of the cost of those assels.

{d} Cash and cash eguivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand; cash in banks; and
investments in money market instruments.

{g) Employee bensfits

Provision is made for benefits accruing to empioyees in respect of wages
and salaries, annual leave, long service leave, and sick ieave when it is
probabie that settlement will be required and they are capable of heing
measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave,
and other employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are
measured at their nominal vaiues using the remuneration rate expected to
apply at the time of settlement.

Provisions made in respect of other empleyee henefits, including long
service ieave, which are not expected to be settied withia 12 months are
measured as the present value of the estimated future cash cutflows

1o be made by the corsolidated entity in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

) Financial assels

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase
or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the investment within the timeframe established by the market congerned,
and are initially measured at fzir value, net of transaction costs.

Subsequent te initial recognition, investments in subsidiaries are measured
at cost. Subseguent fo initial recognition, investments in associates

are accounted for under the equity method in the consefidated financial
statemenats and the cost method in the company financial statements.

QOther financiai assets are efassified into the following specified categories:
financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss', *held-to-maturity’
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o

TES TO THE FINANGE

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTIRUED)

investments, ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets, and ‘foans and
receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpase of
the financial assets and is determined at the fime of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables are recorded at amoriised
cost less impatrment.

(g} Financial instruments issued by the company
Debt and equily instruments

Bebt and equify instruments are classified as either liabilities or as equity
in accardanse with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Transsction posts o the Fssue of soully nstrumenis

Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised
direcily in equily as a reduction of the proceeds of the equity instruments
to which the casis relate. Transaction cosis are the costs that are incurred
directly in connegtion with the issue of those equity instruments and whish
would not have been incurrad had these instruments not been issued.

interest and dividends

Interest and dividends are classified as expenses or as distributions of
profit consistent with the balance sheet classification of the related debl
o equity instrements or component parts of compeund instruments.

{ii} Foreign currency

AN foreign currency transactions during the financial year are brought to
account using the exchange rate in effect at the date of the fransaction.
Foreign currency monetary items at reporting date ara translated at the
exchange rate existing at that date.

Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of financial
performance in the period in which they arise.

Financial stalements of integrated foreign controlled entities are translated
at reporting date using the temgoral method and exchange differences are
taken directly to the statement of financial performance.

(i) Boods and services 1ax

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of goods
and services tax (GST), excepi:

i. where the amount of GST incusred is not recoverable from the taxation
authoerity, it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset
or as part of an item of expense; or

ii. for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of G3T,

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables.

22  www.engin.com.au

L STATEMENTS

Cash flows are inciuded in the statement of cash flows on 2 gross basis.
The GST component of cash flows atising from investing and financing
activities which is recoverable from, or payabie to, the taxation authority
is ctassified as operating cash flows.

(i} lmpairment of non-current assets

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity reviews the carrying
amounis of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there

is any indicatien that those assets have suifered an impairment loss. if any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated

in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any). Where the
asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets,
the consolidated entity estimates the recoverabie amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cosis to sell and value
in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific te the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset (er cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its careying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset {cash-generating unit) is reduced {0 its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the impairment {oss
is treated as & revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount

of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate

of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased

carrying amount does nof exceed the carrying amount that would have

been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the assef
(cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recogaised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is cardied
at {air value, in which case ihe reversal of the impairment foss is treated as
& revaluation increase.

{&) tncome tax

Lurrenl tax

Current tax is ealculated by reference to the amount of income taxes
recoverable in respect of the tax loss for the period. it is calculated using
tax rates and fax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
reporting date. Gurrent tax for cuent and prior periods is recognised as an
asset 1o the exent that it is refundzbie.

fleferred {ax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet
liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from ditferences



TESTOTHEF

FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2002

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTIRUED]

between the carrving amouni of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deferred tax liahifities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis
probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which
deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can
be wtilised. However, deferred £ax assets and Fabilities are nat recognised
if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial
recognition of assels and liahilities {other than as a result of a business
combination), which affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit.

Deferrad tax liahilities are recognised for taxahle temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates and joint
ventures except whers the consolidaied entity is able to control the

reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with thase
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are axpected fo reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply to the periods when the asset and liability giving rise to
them are realised or setfled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in whigh e consalidated endity expects,

at the reporting date, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assels
and liabilities.

Deferred 1ax assels and liabilities are offset when they relate to income
{axes levied by the same taxatign autherily and the company/consolidated
entity intends to setils its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Tax conusalidation

The company and all its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part
of a tax-consolidated group under Australian taxation Jaw. engin Limited is
the head entity in the {ax-consolidated group. Tax expense/income, deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of
the members of the tax-consclidated group are recognised in the separate
financial statements of the members of the {ax-cansolidated group using
the ‘separate taxpayer within group’ approach. Cursent tax assefs and
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax lesses and tax credits of the
members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised by the company

(as head entity in the {ax-consolidated groua).

ANCIAL STATEMENTS

Due to the existence of a tax funding arrangement hetween the entities

in the tax-consolidated group, amounts are recognised as pavable o or
teceivable by the eompany and each member of the group in relation to the
tax contribution amounts paid or pavable between the parent entity and
the other members of the tax-consolidated group in accordance with the
arrangement. Further informatien about the tax funding arrangement is
detailed in note 3 to the financial statements.

{} Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

{m) Invesimenis

tnvestments in controlled entiies are recorded at cost. Investments in
associates are accounted for under the equity methed in the consolidated
financial statements and the cost methed in the company finansial staterents.
Dividend and interest revenues are recognised on a receivable basis.

{n} loint ventures

Interests in joiatly contrelled entities are accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements and the cost methed on
the company finzncial statements.

{o} Leased asseis

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesses.
All other feases are classified as operating leases.

Lonsolidated entily as lesses

Assets held under finance feases are initially recognised at their fair value
or, if [ower, at amounts equal {o the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inceplion of the lease. The corresponding
liability to the lesser is included in the balance sheet as 2 finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the fiability. Finance charges are charged directly
against income, unless they ase directly attributable to gualifving assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the consolidated
entity's general policy on borrowing costs. Refer to note 1(h).

Finance feased assets are amortised on a stzaight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset,

Operating fease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
hasis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattem in which ecenomic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Lease incentives

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives aze recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDER 30 JURE 2008

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLIBIES

{CBNTIHUED)

of incentives are recognisad as a redustion of rental expense on

a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

{p) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, leasehold improvements and equipment under
finance lease are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Cosi incledes expenditure that is directly aitributable to the
acquisition of the item. In the eveni that settlement of all or part of the
purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined by discounting the
amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date

of acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on aroperty, plant and equipment. Depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis so as to write aff the net cost or other
revalued amount of each asset over its expecied useful life to its estimated
residual value. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporling period.

The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of
depreciation:

« Billing system: 5 years

« QOther piant and equipment: 3-8 years

= Equipment under finance lease: 3-5 years

(g} Pringiples of censolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by combining the
financial statemenis of all the entities that comprise the consolidated
entity, being the company {the parent entity) and its subsidiaries as defined
in Accounting Standard AASB 127 *Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements', A list of subsidiaries appears ir note 24 1o the financial
staiements. Consistent accounting palicies are emplayed in the preparation
and presentation of the cansolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements include the information and results
of each controlled entily from the date on which the company abtains
contral and until such time as the company ceases to contend such entity, In
preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances
and transactions, and unrealised profits arising within the consolidated
entity are eliminated in fuil.
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JTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERTS

{r) Provisions

Provisions are recognisec when ihe consolidated entily has a present
obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the
amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as & provision is the best estimate of the
consideration requirec to settle {he present obligation at reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertzinties surrounding the obligatien.
Where 2 provision is measured using the cashflows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cashilows.

When some or al} of the ecanomic benefits required to settie a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is probable that recovery will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Dividends

A provision Is recognised for dividends when they have been declared,
determined or publicly recommended by the directors on or before the
reporting date.

{5} Revenue recognition
Sale of Bopds and Bisposal of Assels

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets is recognised
when the company and consolidated entity has passed control of the goods
or other assets to the buyer.

Rendering of Services - Broadband Telephony Provider

Revenue from the rendering of broadband telephony services is recognised
by engin Limited as customers utilise the service {make telephone calls)
and service fees accrue over the monthly bifling period.

{t) Share-basad payments

Equity-settled share-based payments granted after 7 November 2002 that
were unvested as of 1 January 2005, are measured at fair value at the date
of grant. Fair value is measured by use of a binomial model. The expecied
life used in the model has been adjusted, hased on management's hest
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behavioura# considerations.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expeased on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the consolidated entity's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest,



1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

{CONTIUED

{u) Adoption of new and revised accounting peficies

The following Australian accounting standards and Urgent Issues Group
pronouncements were available for early adoption but have not been
adopted by the Group in these firancial statements.

AASB 8 Operating segments replaces the presentation requirements of the
segment reporting in AASB 114 Segment Reporting, AASB 8 is mandatory
for all annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2009 and is
not expectad to have an impact on the financial results of the Company and
the Group as the standard is only concerned with disclosures.

AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
fron AASB 8 makes amendments to AASB 5 Nen-current &ssets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, AASB 102 Inventories, AASB 107 Cash
Flow Statements, AASB 119 Employee Benefits, AASB 127 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting,
and AASB 136 Impairment Assefs. AASB 2007-3 is applicable for annnal
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and must be
adopted in conjunction with AASB 8 Operating Segments. This standard is
only expected to impact disclosures contained within the financial report.

Revised AASR 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (2007) introduces
the term “fotal compsehensive income’, which represents the changes

in equity during & period other than those sesulting from chanrges from
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners, Total comprehensive
income may be presented in either a single statement of comprehensive
income (effectively combining both the income statement and ali non-owner
changes in equity in a singie statement) or, in an income statement and

a separaie statement of comprehensive inceme. Revised AASB 101, which
becomes mandatory for the Group’s 30 June 2010 financial statements, is
expected to have a significant impact on the presentation of the consolidated
financial stalements. The Group has not yet determined the potential effeci
the revised standasd wilk have or the Group’s financial report.

ARSB 2007-8 Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards arise from
the amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements. The
amendments are applicable for annual reporting perieds beginning on or
after 1 January 2009.

Revised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs eliminates the option of recognising
borrawing costs immediately as an expense, ta the exieni thal they are
directly atiributable to the agquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. The amendments are applisable for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

AASB 2007-6 Amendments to Ausiralian Accounting Standards arise from
the amendments to AASB 123 Borrawing Costs. The amendments are
applicable for annual reporting perieds beginning or or after 1 January 2009.

Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations changes the application of
acquisitien accounting for business combinations and the accounting

for non-controfling (minerity) interests. Key changes include; The
immediate expensing of al transaction costs; measurement of contingent
consiceration at acquisition date with subsequent changes through the
ineome statement; measurement of non-controlling (minority} interests at
full fair value or the proportionate share of the fair value of the underlying
net assets; guidance on issues such as reacquired rights and vendor
indemnities; and the inciusion of combinaticns by the contract afone and
those involving mutuals. The revised standard becomes mandatary for
the Group's 36 fune 2010 financial statements. The Group has nat yet
determined the potential effect of the revised standard on the Group’s
financial report.

Amended AASB 127 Consofidated and Separate Financial Statements
changes the accounting for the investments in subsidiaries. Key changes
include: The re-measurement to fair value of any previcus/retained
investment when control is obtained/lest, with any resuiting gain or

loss heing recognised in profit or loss; and the treatment of increases in
ownership interest after controf is obtained as transactions with equity
holders in their capacity as ecuity holders. The revised standard will
become mandatory for the Group's 3G fune 20186 financial statements.
The Group has not yet determined the potential effect on the Group’s
financial report,

RASB 2008-1 Amendments o Ausiralian Acconnting Standard — Share-
based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations clarifies the
definition of vesting conditions, introduces the cencept of non-vesting
cenditions, requires noa-vesting conditions to be refiected in grant-date
1air value and provides the accounting treatment for non-vesting conditions
and cancellations. The amendments to AASB 2 will become mandatory

for the Group's 30 June 2010 financial statements. The Group has not yet
determined the polential effect on the Group’s financial repor,

AASB 2008-5 Amendments o Australian Accounting Standards arising from
the Annual Improvements Project (July 2008) will introduce 24 amendments
to 15 different standards that may require changes in the presentation,
recogaition and measurement of various balances. AASE 2008-5 will
become mandatory for the Group's 30 June 2010 financial statements.

The Group has not yet determined the potential effect on the Group's
financial report.

AASB 2008-6 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from the Annual Improvements Froject (July 2008) will introduce
terminology and editorial amendments to eight different standards. AASB
2008-6 wil} become mandatery for the Group's 30 June 2010 firancial
statements. The Group is not expecting this to have a significant impact en
its financiai statements.

ARSB 2008-7 Amendments fe Australian Accounting Standards — Cost of
an investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate (July
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2009

1. SUMMARY OF ACCODUNTING POLICIES
(CONTIHUED)

2008} will amend AASB 118, AASB 121, AASB 127 and AASB 136, all of
which must be adopted af the same time, The amendments in AASB 127
should be applied prospectively to new reorganisation after 1 January
2009. Entities may also elect o agply ihe amendraents in AASB 127.38B
and 38C retrospectively fo past reorganisations within the scope of these
paragraphs. The Group has not yet determined the potential effact of the
amending standard on the Group’s financial report,

AASB 2008-8 Amendments fo Australian Account Standard — Eligible
Hedged ftems clarifies the effect of using options as hedging instruments
and the circumstances in whick inflation risk can be hedged. The
amendments become mandatory for the Group’s 3¢ June 2014 financial
statements, with retrospective application. The Group has not yet
determined the potential effacts of the amendment.
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ARSB Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
provides guidance on the accounting for agreements for the construction
of real estate by the seller under AASB 111 Construction Contracts or AASB
118 Revenue and the timing of reveaue recognition. This interpretation will
become mandatory for the Group's 30 June 2010 firancial statements, with
retrospective application reguired. The Group has not yet determined the
potential effect of the interpretation.

AASB Interpretation 16 Hedges of 2 Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
applies to annual reporting periods begirning on or after 1 Octeber 2008,

with early adeption permitted. This interpretation is not expected to have a
significant impact on the financial Group and the Cempany,




{OTES TO THE FIN

FOR THE FHANGIAL YEAR TRDED 30 JUND 2008

NCIAL STATEM

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

CONSDLIDATED COMPANY
2009 2008 2809 2008
$ $ 3 3
Operating revenue e
Rendering of services 18,118,773 -
Sale of gonds 636,807 -
19,755,580 -
Other income
Profit on sale of investment in Unwired Group Limited Shares 3,711,589 3,711,589
Other revenae 14,245 14,245
3,725,834 3,725,834
Finance expenses
Finance lease finance charge 190,632 -
Convertible note interest — related party 533,760 533,760
Other 1,933 -
126,325 533,760
Dther expenses
el bad and doubtful debts 176,714 -
Ecuily settied share based payments 99,514 -
Loss oa disposal of property, plant and equipment 85,845 -
Write off of inventory 430,600 -
Depreciation and amortisation:
Billing System 1,099,759 -
Other plant and gquipment 1,556,521 -
Equipment under finance lease 728,659 -
Impairment:
Impairment of plant and equipment and equipment under
finance lease _ _
Total depreciation, amorfisation and impairment 3,384,939 -
Operating lease rental expenses: T
Minimum lease payments 289510 322,894 -
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TESTOTHEF

FOR THE FINARCIAL YEAR ERDED 30 JURE 2008

3. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

LAL STATE

GONSOLIDATED COMPARY
2609 2008 2609 2008
§ $ 5 $
income tax expense
Current period - -
Deferred tax {credit)/expense due te origination and reversal
of temporary differences 67,486 ~
Tax losses net brought to account (67,486} : -
Total tax expense in income statement - -
Recongiliatien between tax expense and pre-fax
accounting profit
Profit/{loss) before income tax {12,168,391) (33,367,917}
Income tax (credit) using the domestic corporation tax rate 30%
{2008: 30%) (3,650,517) (10,010,375)
Non-deductible expenses 2,111 -
Non-deductible intercompany fcan write-off - 10,967,997
Tax losses not brought to account 3,648,406 (957,622)
Beferred tax balance
There was ne deferred tax balance recognised on the balance
sheei in esther the current or prior year.
Unrecognised deferred tax balances
The following deferred tax assets have not been brought
to account as assets:
Tax losses — revenue 11,467,098 11,467,098
Tax iosses — capital 257,000 257,000
11,724,098 11,724,098

The 2008 Consolidated unrecognised deferred tax balance relating to revenue has been restated due to an error in the amount reparted in the 2068

Financial Statements,

The taxations benefits of tax losses not brought to account will only be obtainad if:

= gssessable income s derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the deductions to be realised;

« gonditions for deductibility imposed by the law are complied with; and

& no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the realisation of the henefit from the deductions.
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0

FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR SHDED 30 1

3, INCOME TAX EXPENSE connmum

Tax conselidation
Relevancs of iax consolidation to the consolidated entity

The company and its wholly owned Australian resident entities have formed a tax-conselidated group with effect from I July 2003 and arz therafore taxed as
a single entity from that date. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group is engin Limited. The members of the tax-consolidated group are identified
af note 24,

fiature of tax funding arvangements and tax sharing sgresmments

Entities within the tax-consolidated group have entered info a tax funding arrangement and a tax-sharing agreement with the head entity. Under the terms
of the tax funding arrangement, engin Limited and each of tha entities in the tax-consolidated group has agreed fo pay a tax equivalent payment to or from
the head entity, based on the current tax liability or current tax asset of the entity. Such ameunts are reflected in amounts receivahle from or payahle o other
entities in the tax-consolidated group.

The tax sharing agreement entered into between membars of the tax-conselidated group provides for the detarmination of the allocation of income tax
liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts kave beer recogaised in the financial statements
in respect of this agreemeni, as payment of any amaunis under the tax sharing agreement is consicered remaote.

4. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES

ndividugl Divectors” and Executives’ remuneration disclosurss

Infermation regarding individual Directors' and Executives’ remuneration as permitted by Corporztions Reguiations 2M.3.03 and 2M.6.04 are provided in the
Remuneration Repaort section of the Directors’ report.

No Girector kas entered into a material con{ract with the Company or Group since the end of the previous financial year, and there were no material contracts
involving Directors interests existing at year-end.

The aggregate compensation made to Directors and other members of key management personnel of the Company and the Group is set out below:

CONSOLIDATED COMPARY

2008 2069 2608

$ $ §

Short term employee benefits 1,407,177 -
Post-employment benefits 127,331 -
Qther leng term benefits 9410 _
Termination benefits 694,037 -
Share-based payments (321,330 -
Total 1,916,623 -
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TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE!

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR FRDED 30 JUNE 2008

3. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

As at 30 June 2009 the number of options on issue was Nil (2008: Kil).

There werz no share-based payment arrangements in existence during the period.

The Group has an ownership-based compensation scheme for executives, senior empleyees and non executive directors of the Group. In accordance with the
provisions of the plans, as approved by shareholders at previous annual general meetings, executives, senior employees and non exacutive directors may be

granted options to acquire ordinary shares at no consideration where specified key performance targets are achieved.

Each executive share oplion converts into ane ordinary share of engin Limited on exercise. The opticns carry nefther rights to dividends nor voting rights.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date of their expiry.

The following table reconciles ihe ontstanding share options granted under the Executive Share Option Plan at the beginning and end of the financial vear:

2009 2608
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AYERAGE
NUUMBER OF EXERCISE PRICE HUMBER OF EXERCISE PRICE
GPTIONS 3 OPTIONS by
Batance st beginning of the financial year (R 9,515,000 -
Granted during the financial year 1,106,600 -
Forfeited during the financial year (7,248,000} -
Exercised during the financial year (3,367,000 -
Balance at end of the financial year - -
Exercisable at end of the financial year - -
6. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
CONSOLIDATED COMPARY
2009 2608 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Amounts received or due andg receivable by auditors of the :
company for;
Audit services
KPMG Australia
— Audit and review of financiai statements - -
Deloitte Touche Tokmatsy
— Audit and review of financial statements 117,500 -
— Other audit related services i : 6,300 -
100,000 123,800 -
Other Services o
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
- Other assurance services 20,060 -
Total Auditors’ remuneration i Iﬂl}l}ﬂﬂ 143,80¢ -

KPMG was appointed auditor of the company by a resolution of shareholders at the AGM en 27 November 2008.
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MOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEM

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR CHOED 30 JUNE 2003

1. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CONSGLIDATED COMPANY
2008 2003 2089 2008
$ $ $ $
Current
Trade receivables 1,505,163 -
Aliowance for doubtful debts (105,293} -
1,399,870 -
Other sundry debtors 26,423 -
1,426,293 -
Nen-current
Receivable fram controlled entities - 12,600,000
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debis
Balance at the beginning of the year 40,342 -
Amounts written off as ¢ncoliectible (130,358) ERS: -
Amounts recevered during the year 17,545 -
Impairment losses recognised on receivables 177,764
Balance at the end of the year 105,293 -

In determining the recoverabilily of a trade receivable, engin considers any debt over the age of 90 days to be impaired. This amount is fully provided for as
a deubtful debi. Debts with an ageing of less than 90 days that become unrecoverable are fully provided for. Rccordingly the directors believe that thers is
no turther provision required for impairment than the allowance of doubtful debts. There were no individually significant impaired receivables, alf impaired

receivables were over 90 days pasi dug.

With respect 1o the related party receivables, these balances are not interest bearing and have been assessed for impairment and written down to recoverable
amount on the basis of the ferecast operations of the relevant entities.

The Groua’s exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related o trade and other receivables are disclosed in note 25,
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JTES TO THE FINANCIAL

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2059

8. INVENTORIES

CORSOLIDATED COMPARY
2069 2648 2804 2008
$ $ $ %
Finished goods
At cost 940,560 -
Provision for obselescence (219,727) -
At net realisable value 121,173 -
9. GTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments 289,160 -
Other 1,359 -
296,519 -

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

CONSOUIDATED CARRYING

QWHERSHIP INTEREST AMGUNT
GOUNTRY OF 200% 2008 2009 2008
% %

MAME OF ENTHY PRINGIPAL ACTIVITY INCORPORATION % %

Joint Yenture Entity
Look Mobile Pty Limited Mobile Phone Dealer Channel  Australia

CONSOLIDATED

2009 2008
3 3

Summarised financial infermation of jointly controlled entities:

Current assets

Gurrent fiabilities

Ket assets

Expenses

Dividends received from associates and joint venture entities
During the year, dividands of Nit (2008: $14,245) were received by the Consolidated entily from its jointly controlled entity.

Look Mobile Pty Limited was de-registered in Getober 2008,
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TESTOTHE FI

FOR THE TINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 200%

GIAL

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CUSTOMER EQUIPMERT
MANAGEMENT AND  CGTRER PLANT AND UNDER FINARCE
BILLING SYSTEM EQUIPMERT LEASE AT GOSY TOTAL
$ $ : $
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 luly 2007 3,844 694 8,735,688 3,600,563 16,180,945
Additions 1,206,595 1,227,942 - 2,434,537
Disposals - (1,716,352) (750} (1,717,102}
Transfer - 209,243 (209,249) -
Balance at 1 July 2008 5,051,289 8,456,527 3,390,564 16,898,380
Additions ' gidi o 121,056
Dispesals i
Transfer e iR
Balance at 30 June 2009 5,058,789

Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 July 2067 - (5,306,610 (745,194) {6,051,804)
Depreciation expense (1,099,759) (1,556,521} (728,659} (3,384,539}
Disposais - 1,630,507 750 1,631,267

Transfer - {209,249) 209,249 -

Balance at 1 July 2006 (5,441,873)

(1,093,759)

(1,263,854)

(7,805,486)

Depreciation expense
impairment *

E

9)

Disposals
Transfer
Balance at30june2009 4o (2353814
Net book value
As at 30 June 2008 3,014,654 2,126,710 9,092,894
As 21 30 June 2609 80,30 72
CONSOLIDATED ComMPARY
paiii 2008 2000 2008
$ $ 3 3
Aggregate depreciation recognised as an expense during theyear: [17 101 sl g
Billing system 1,099,759 -
Plant and equipmert 1,556,522 -
Equipment ander finance fease 728 658 -
3,384,939 -

(a) The impairment relates to assefs both owned and under finance lease which will be decommissioned in the first quarter of Financial Year 201, The
recoverable amount was determined hased on each assets value in use ever $he remaining useful life and residual value and 2 discount rate of 12.5%.
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JTES TO THE FIN

FORTHE FIRARCIAL YEAR ENDED S0 JUNE 2008

12. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

The consolidated entity does not hold fitle to the equipment under finance lease, which is pledged as security against the finance lsase liability.

13. CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

iCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2009 2008 2069 2008
$ $ $ ¢
{rade payables 1,825,994 o -
Other payables and accruais 2,270,024 -
4,096,018 -
14. CURRENT BORROWINGS
Secured
At amortised cost:
Finance [ease liabilities (nete 12 and 23) 1,202,802 -
15. GURRENT PROVISIONS
Empioves bengfits 314,374 -
16. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
Secured
At amortised cost:
Finance lease lizbilities {note 12 and 23) 416,894 -
17. NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
Employee benefits 81,651 -
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NOTES TU THE F

FOR THE FINANGCIAL YEAR EHDED 30 JUNE 2008

18. ISSUED CAPITAL

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2008 2009 2008
$ § $
Fully paid ordinary shares (2009: 635,516,579 45,079,567 [ 45,079,667
The company does not have authorised capital and issued shares da not have a par value.
2060 2608
HO. b3
Fully paid ordinary shares
Balance at beginning of financiat year 351,127,766 35,451,483
Issue of shares under executive and employee share
option plan (note &) 3,367,600 1,408,874
Issue of shares 281,022,213 8,430,666
Share issue costs LU e B - (211,356)
Balance at end of financial year o UB355IBTY o 45,084,769 635,516,978 45,079,667
Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote par share and carnry the right to dividends.
19. RESERVES
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ § § 5
Employee equity-settied benefits reserve e
Balance at beginning of financiat year 1,309,360 1,309,360
Share-based payment 99,514 L 99,514
Transfer to share capital (1,408,874 ;:2-' o (1,408,874
Balance at end of financiat vear - _

The employee equity-settled benefits reserve arises on the grant of share eplions to executives and selected employzes under the executive share ownership
plan. Amounts are fransferred out of the reserve and into issuad capital when the optioss are exercised. Further information about share-based payments fo

executives is made in nate 5 to the financial statements.

20. (AGCUMULATED LOSSES)/RETAINED EARNINGS

COHSOLIBAIED COMPANY
2008 2008 2008 2608
3 $ $ $
Baiance al beginning of financiat year (20,902,883} 288,250
Net loss attributable to members of the parent entity (12,168,391) {33,367,917)
Batance at end of financial year (33,071,274 ¢ (33,07%,667)

engin Limited [ABN 46 063 582 9801 Annual Report 2009 35




OTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEM

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ERDED 3¢ JURE 2009

21. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

CONSOLIDATED

n &

2 2008
CENTS PLR SHARE  CENYS PER SBARE

Basic earnings/{loss) per share:

Frem continuing operations (2.90)
Totel basic earnings/(loss) per share {2.90)
Difuted earnings/(loss) per share:

From continuing eperations St (2.50)
Total dituted eamings/(loss) per share Sl (1De) (2.90)

Basic earnings/{loss) per share
The earnings/tloss) and weighted average number of ordinary shares vsed in the calculation of basic earnings
per share are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

2009 2008
§ §
(Less)/Earnings from continuing operations * | L (B,760.201) I (12,168,391)
COMSGLIDATED
2008
HO.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic earnings/(loss) per share 420,007,435

{a) Earnings usad in the calsulation of total basic earnings per share and basic earnings/(loss) per share frem
continuing operations reconciles to net profit in the income statement as follows:

CORSOLIDATED

20668 2008
$ $

(12,168,391}

Net profit/(loss)
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Z1. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE woymumen

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
The earnings/{loss) and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calsulation of diluted earnings/{loss)
per share are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

2049 2008
$ $

Earnings from continuing operatfons ! { ,75 ,291) I {12,168,381}
CONSOLIDATED
2009 2508
fO. M.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes dp i
of diluted earnings per share ¥ L1 635,515,979 420,007 435

{a) Earnings/{loss} used in the caleulation of fofal diluied earnings/(loss) per share and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share from continuing operations recongiles to ret profitAloss) in the incoma statement as follaws:

CONSOLIDATED
2008 2008
g $
Net profii/(loss) | g 0291)} (12,168,391)

{b) The weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:

CONSGLIDATED

2009 2008
HO. MO,
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used inthe |72 s
calculation of basic EPS 420,007,435
Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:
Employee options _
Weighted average number of ardinary shares used i the
calculation of difuted EPS 420,007,435
There were no emplayee options on issue at 30 June 2009.
22. FRANKING AGCOUNT
COMPANY
2008 2008
$ $
Adjusted franking account batance (tax paid basis} S aes Aty % 3,985,319
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EHOED 30 JUNE 7000

23. LEASES

Finance leases
Leasing arransemenis

Finance [eases refate to network hardwarz and computer lgases. The consclidated entity has the option to purchase the eguipment for a nominal amount

at the conclusion of the lease agreements.

Finance lease Hahilities

PRESENT VALUE OF MIBIMUM FUTURE LEASE

RAIRURE FUTURE LEASE PAYMIENTS PAYMENTS
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008 2809 2008 2045 2008
3 § $ L3 3 $ § $
No later than 1 year 211,288,798 B 4 1202802 | -
Later than k vear and nof later than 5 years 439,002 - 416,854 V -
Later than five years - - - -
Minimum lease payments* 1,718,800 = - 74 1 1,619,696 -
Less future finance charges (99,104 = - - -
Present value of minimum lease payments it 1,619,656 ;f_ N e - 4 1,619,69 -
Included in the financia? statements as: G
Current barrowings (note 14) i : 1,202,802 -
Nor-current borrowings {note 15) _V 416,894 [0 -
| 161969 | -
* Minimum future lezse payments includes the apgregate of alf lease payments and any guaranteed residual vaige.
Operating leases
Leasing arrangements
Operating leases relate to office facilities with lease terms to Septembar 2009.
CONSOLIBATED COMPANY
2008 2904 2008
$ $ $
Non-canceliable operating lease payments
Not longer than 1 year 289,506 -
Longer than 1 year and aot fonger than 5 years 12,31 -
361,883 -
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EHOED 30 HRE 2008

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAS

24. SUBSIDIARIES

OWHERSHIP

COUNTRY OF INTEREST 2004 2008
NAME OF ERTTY INCORPORATION % %
Parent enfity
engin Limited Australia
Subsidiaries
MiBrozdband Pty Limited Austraiia 100
Inrocom Systems Pty Limited Australia 100
Metrofi Investmant Holdings Pty Limited @ Australia 100

All entities are members af the tax consolidated group.

{a) Approved for de-registration o 13 June 2008 and formally disseived on 13 August 2008,

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION

engin Limited aperates primarily as a provider of Broadband ielephony services within Australia.

26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

{a) Equity interests in related parties
Equtly inferests in Controlled Lntities

Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in controlled entities are disclosed in note 24 of the financial statements.

Eouity interests in lnint venture enlities

Dretails of interests in joini venture entities are disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements.

(b) Key management personnel! remuneration

Details of key management persornel remuneration are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDLD 30 JUNE 2008

Z6. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES courmuen

{(c} Other transactions with key management personnei
The profit/(lass) from aperations includes the foowing items of revenue and expense that resulted from transactions, which were on normat commercia!
terms and conditions other than remuneration, loans or equity heldings, with key management personnel or their personally-related entities:

CONSOLIDATED
2009 2008
$ $
Sales revenue — rendering of services -
Sales revenue - supply of goods {7,741}
Internet expenses — reimbursement -
Total recognised as revenue (7,741}
Administration expenses =
Rental expenses 414,591
Telephone expenses 78,985
Marketing expenses 260,208
Total recognised as expenses 753,894

(d} Transactions with other related parties

Cther related parties include:

« the parent entity

+ entities with joint controf or significant iafluence over the group
= associates

+ joint ventures in which the entity is a venturer

= subsidiaries

= other refated parties.

{e) Transactions involving the parent entity
During the financial year, engin Limited received dividends of $Nil (2008: $14,245) from Look Mobile Limited.

During the year ended Jure 2008 Network Investment Holdings Pty. Limited (a Seven Netwerk Limited geoup company) provided 2 convertible note debt facility
to engin to enable the acquisition of Unwired Group Limited shares in September 207, on normal commercial terms. The foan amount drawn down by engin
was $20,816,523 and subsequent interest payments of $533,760 were paid.

Duging the year ended June 2008 engin Limited sold its 19.81% share in Unwired Group Limited to a Seven Netwerk Limited Group company and realised
a profit on sale of $3,711,589. The company paid back the convertible note facility following this sale.

During the year ended june 2608 an underwriting fee of $11%,276 was paid to a Seven Nefwork Limited group company in relation fo the non-renounceable
rights issue that took place on 3 April 2008.

{f) Transactions involving other related pariies
engin Limited engaged the services of a Seven Retwork Limited group company for printing to the value of $26,494 (2008: $72,734). These transactions were
on normal cemmercial terms and conditions.

During the financial year Mibroadband Pty Limited provided administrative and accounting services at cost to Leok Mobile Limited, totalling $Nil (2008: $14,544).

{g) Parent entities
The pavent entity and the ultimate parent entity in the consolidated entity is engin Limited.
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27. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no subsequent events to report.

28. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash or hand and in banks and investments in money market instruments,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the firancial year as shown in the cash flow statement is reconcilad to the
related items in the balance sheet as follows:

CONSOUDATED COMPARY
2009 2008 2009 2008
§ $ $ %
Cash and cash equivalents 6,583,252 -
(k) Reconciliation of loss for the period to net cash flows from operating activities
CONSOLIDATED CORPANY
2008 2008 2008
$ $ $
Loss for the period (12,168,391) | 5207 (33367,017)
Share of jointly controfled entities’ ioss {less dividends} 15,206 . 2 (1
Deprectation and amortisation of non-current assets 3,384,939 -
Impairment of assets - -
Equity seftied share-based payment 99,514 99,514
Interest revenue {317,388) —
Profit on sale of investment in Unwised Limited {3,711,589) {3,711 589)
Write-off of intercompany loan - 36,559,950
Increase/{decrease) in deferred tax balances - -
Other non-cash transactions - -
Changes in net assets and liabilities, net of effects from
acquisition and disposal of businesses:
{Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivabies 638,272 -
Current irventories 60,339 -
Other current assets (56,156) -
Increase/(decrease) in [abilities:
Curzent payables {2,336,050) S (23,016
Qther current liabitities (235,28%) -
Other non-current liahilities (56,733 -
Het cash from/{used in) operating activities (14,683,326} (443,019
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant aceounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and sxpenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrement are disclosad in note 1 to the
financial statements.

(b} Interest rate risk management
The consolidated erdity is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at hoth fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by limiting the
borrawings of the entity to necessary capital expendituss.

Maturity profile of financial instruments
The following table details the consolidated entity’s exposure to intarest rate risk as at 30 lune 2008:

FIXED BATURITY DATES
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
EFFECTIVE VARIABLE M0
INTEREST INTEREST  PESS THAN INTEREST
RATE RATE 1YEAR  |-2YEARS  2-3YEARS 3+ YEARS BEARING
7889 % $ b3 5 $ § $
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 340 4,250,567 - — - - -
Trade and other receivabies - - - - - - 1,252,280
Security deposit - - - - - - -
4,250,567 - - - - 1,252,280
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables ® - - - - - - 3,649,670
Finance lease lizbilities 8.00 - 456,582 - - - -
Employes benefits @ - - - - - - 326,636
- 456,582 - - — 3,976,306

{a} Due in less than one year.

42 www.engin.com.au



OTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEM

[NANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

29, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS conmnues

FIXED BATURITY DATES
WEIGHTED
AYERAGE
EFFECTIVE VARIABLE NOH
INTEREST INTEREST  LESS THAH INTEREST
RATE RATE ITYEAR  1-ZYEARS  Z-3YEARS 3+ YEARS BEARIHG T07AL
208 % § § 3 $ $ $ $
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivaients 7.51 5,983,252 - - - - - b,583,252
‘Trade and other receivables™ - - - - - - 1,426,293 1,426,293
Security deposit - - — - - - - -
6,583,282 - - - - 1,426,293 2,000,545
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables - - - - - - 4,086,018 4,096,018
Finance lease fizhilities 8.48 - 1,288,798 430,002 - - - 1,718,800
Employee benefits @ - - - - - - 396,025 396,025
- 1,288,798 430,002 - - 4492043 6,210,843
{2} Due in less than one year.
Ageing of receivables past due bt net impaired
CONSOLIDATED CORPANY
2008 2008 2609 2008
0-30 days S hgaer 63,459 -
31-60 days USSR T 19,047 -
61-90 days : G = - -
Total overdue receivables not impaired i -;83:639' 82,506 -

{c) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers 1o the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual ebligations resulting ir financiat loss to the conselidated entity. The
consolidated entity has adopted a palicy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral or other security where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of finrancial loss from defaults. The consolidated entity measures credit risk on a fair value basis.

The consclidated entity does not have any significant credit risk expasure to any single counterparty or any group of counterpariies having similar
characteristics.

The cariying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any provisions for losses, represents the consolidated entity's maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral or cther security obtained.

(d} Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amount of financial assets and finaricial liakilities recorded in the financial statements approximates their respective faie values, determined in
accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in note 1 of the firancial statements.
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(e) Liguidity risk

itimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group and Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirments. The Group and Comaany
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitering forecast and actual cash fiows and matching
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

{f) Capital risk management

The Graup and Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group and Gompany will be able to continue as a going concern white maximising
the return to stakeholders through the opfimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group and Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2008.

The capital structure of the Group and Company consists of debi, which includes the borrowing disclosed in notes 14 and 16, cash and cash equivalents and
equity atiributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 18, 19 and 20 respectively.

Operating cash fiows are used to maintain and expand the group’s YoIP business, as well as to make routine outflows for repayment of maturing debt.

30. ADDITIONAL COMPANY INFORMATION

engin Limited is a listed public company, incorporated znd operating in Australia.

Registered office

Level 2, 38-42 Pirrama Road
Pyrmont NSW 2009

Ted: {02) 8771 7771

Principal place of business
431 Warringah Road
Frenchs Forest, NSW, 2085
Tel: (02) 9004 4444
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

1 Ir the opinion of the directors of engin Limited (‘the Company'):

(a) the financiai statements and notes and the Remaneration report in the Directors’ repart, set out on pages 11 o 44, are in accerdance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i} giving a true and fair view of the Company's and the Group’s financial pesition as at 30 June 2009 and of their performance, for the financial
year ended on that date; and

{iiy complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Carporations Regulations 2001;
(b) the financial report also complies with [nternational Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1:
{c) there are reasonable grounds to betieve that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

2 The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295 of the Gorporations Act 2001 from the General Manager and Head of Finance for
the financial year ended 30 june 2009.

Signed in accordance with a resolutian of the directars:

—

lan Smith
Chairman
Sydney, 17 September 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Engin Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Engin Limited (the company), which
comprises the balance sheets as at 30 June 2009, and the income statements, statements of changes
inequity and cash flow statements for the year ended on that date, a description of significant
accounting policies and other sxplanatory notes 1 to 30 and the directors” declaration set out on
pages 17 to 45 of the Group comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end
or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
finaneial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations} and the Corporations Aet 2001 This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to ftaud or error; selecting and
applying apptopriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances. In note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial report, comprising the
financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Siandards. These Auditing Standards require that
we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report 16 order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report,

‘We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards
{including the Australian Accounting Interpretations), a view which is consistent with our
understanding of the Company’s-and the Group’s financial position and of their performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Independence

In conducting our andit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Aet 2001,

Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion:
{a) the financial report of Engin Limited is in accordance with the Corperations dct 2001,
including:
{i}  giving atrue and fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position as

at 30 June 2009 and of their performance for-the year ended on that date; and

(i)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

(b} the financial report also complics with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
innote 1.

Report on the remumeration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included on pages 11 to 14 of the directors’ report for
the year ended 30 June 2009. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with Section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Our responsibility is to express an.opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with guditing standards.

Audditor’s opinion

In-our opision, the remuneration feport of Engin Limited for the year ended 30 June 2009, complies
with Section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

(4

Kenneth Reid
Partner
Syduey
17 September 2009
engin Limited [ABN 46 063 582 9%0] Annual Repori 2009
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ADDITIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION

AS AT 8 SEPTEMBER 2009

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Substantial Shareholders

The number of ordinary shares held by Substantial Sharehclders as at 8 September 20G9 are as follows:

SHAREHOLDER H0. OF SHARES Y%
Netwark [nvestment Holdings Pty. Limited 369,018,232 58.07
Direct Group Pty. Limited 36,306,550 5.71
Distrihution of Ordinary Shareholders
ORDINARY

CATEGORY (ND.s) SHAREHOLDERS OPTIONS
1-1,000 148 -
1,001-5,000 728 -
5,401-10,000 484 -
10,001-100,000 1,085 -
100,001 and over 263 -

2,758 -
Holding less than a marketable parcel 2,056 -

Yoting Rights — ardinary shares

On a show of hands, every member present in persan or by praxy or atiorney, or being a corperation, present by its representative, shall have one vote. On a
pol, every member present in person or by proxy or attorney, or being a corporation, present by its representative, shall have one vote for every share held.

Stock Exchange Listing
The Company is listed with the Australian Stock Exchange Limited and the home exchange is Sydney.

Dn-Market Buy-Back

There is no current on-market buy-back.
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AS AT B SLPTEMBER 2008

Top 20 Haldings as at 8 September 2009

ORDINARY FULLY PAID HOLDER NARE HUMBER  PERCENTAGE
Network Investment Holdings Pty. Limited 369,018,234 58.07
Direct Group Ply. Limited 36,300,550 51
Avondale Management Limitad 28,180,050 442
Interfina Investments Phy. Limited 17,771,936 2.80
Sieven Appleby 10,340,883 1.63
Jean Gamble 7,160,351 L1z
Rotherleigh Properties Pty. Limited 5,114,286 0.50
Henley Group Heldings Limited 4,285,715 0.67
Michael and Birgit Rath 3,808,800 0.69
En — Dev Finance Consultants Pty. Limited 3,800,000 0.60
Geoffrey and Catherine Sinclair 3,600,000 0.56
Angus Martin 3,430,593 0.51
Johin Waterman 3,019,516 0.48
likka Tales 3,000,000 0.48
Tresdam Ply. Limited 2,750,453 0.43
Theo Clark 2,708,978 0.43
Stuari Howes 2,560,080 0.39
JYMPP Investments Pty, Limited 2,273,354 0.37
Don and Ann Lazzaro 2,000,000 031
John E Gill Trading Piy. Ltd 1,896,523 0.29
Totals for Top 20 513,280,302 80.77
Security Totals 635,516,579
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AS AT B BEPTEMBER 2009

GCompany secretary
r ] Kinninmont

Shareholder e-mail contact

investorrelations@engin.com.au

Registered office

Level 2,

38-42 Pirrama Road
Pyrmont NSW 2009
Tel: {02 8777 7777
ACN: 063 582 990
ABN: 46 063 582 990

Principal administration office
431 Warringah Read

Frenchs Forest, NSW, 2086

Tel: {02) 9G04 4444

Share registry

Registries Limited

Level 7, 207 Kent Strest
Sydney HSW 2000

Tel: (02) 9290 9600
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

Company secretary

Mr J Kinninmont

Sharsholder e-mail contact

investarrelations@engin.com.au

Registered office

Level 2,

38-42 Pirrama Road
Pyrmont NSW 2009
Tel: (02) 8777 7777
ACN: 063 582 990
ABN: 46 063 582 990

Principal administration office

431 Warringah Road
Frenchs Forest NSW 2086
Tel: (02} 9004 4444

Share registry

Registries Limited
PO Box R67, Royal Exchange
Sydney NSW 1223

Auditers

KPMG

Bankers

Westpac Banking Corparation

Solicitors

Fraehills
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